
Page 1 of 2 

 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MONDAY, OCTOBER 03, 2022 

7:00 PM AT COMMUNITY CENTER, 528 MAIN STREET 

 

 
 
Call to Order by the Mayor 

Roll Call 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Approval of Minutes 

1. Regular meeting of September 19, 2022. 

Agenda Revisions 

Special Presentations 

2. Proclamation recognizing October 3-7, 2022 as Leader in Me Week. 

3. Proclamation recognizing October 9-15, 2022 as Fire Prevention Week. 

Public Forum. (Speakers will have one opportunity to speak for up to 5 minutes on topics relevant to City 

business.) 

Staff Updates 

Old Business 

4. Pass Ordinance #3016, amending Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
adoption of revised City Council Meeting Procedures, upon its third & final consideration. 

5. Pass Ordinance #3017, amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of 
Ordinances relative to prohibiting parking on portions of Utility Parkway, upon its third & final 
consideration. 

Consent Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by voice vote on a single motion without separate 

discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered separately.) 

6. Receive and file the City Council Standing Committee minutes of September 19, 2022 relative to the 
following items: 
a) Zoning Amendments Voting Threshold. 
b) Downtown Public Restroom Study. 

7. Receive and file Departmental Monthly Reports of August 2022. 

8. Receive and file a communication from the Civil Service Commission relative to the certified list for 
the position of Assistant Public Safety Director/Police Chief. 

9. Approve the application of J & M Displays, Inc. (Holiday Hoopla) for a fireworks display permit for 
November 25, 2022. 

10. Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
a) Blue Room, 201 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 

1



Page 2 of 2 

b) Lark Brewing, 6301 University Avenue, Class C liquor, Special Class A beer & outdoor service – 
renewal. 
c) The Landmark, 107 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
d) Tony's La Pizzeria, 407 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 
e) Casey's General Store, 601 Main Street, Class E liquor - renewal. 
f) Casey's General Store, 601 Main Street, Class E liquor – change in ownership. 
g) Amvets, 1934 Irving Street, Class A liquor & outdoor service - temporary expansion of outdoor 
service area. (October 1 - November 30, 2022) 

Resolution Calendar: (The following items will be acted upon by roll call vote on a single motion without 
separate discussion, unless someone from the Council or public requests that a specific item be considered 
separately.) 

11. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a contract with the Governor’s Traffic Safety 
Bureau (GTSB) relative to funding for traffic enforcement and training. 

12. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a License Agreement with Aureon Network 
Services relative to intalling a fiber optic telecommunications system within the public right-of-way of 
18th Street, Waterloo Road and University Avenue. 

13. Resolution approving and authorizing execution of a Preconstruction Agreement for Primary Road 
Project with the Iowa Department of Transportation (IDOT) relative to the Highway 58 & Ridgeway 
Avenue Reconstruction Project. 

14. Resolution approving and adopting payment standards for the Housing Choice Voucher Program 
relative to the Section-8 Housing Program. 

15. Resolution setting October 17, 2022 as the date of public hearing to consider proposed amendments 
to Section 18-23(5) and Section 26-4(c) of the Code of Ordinances relative to voting threshold 
required to override Planning and Zoning Commission. 

Ordinances 

16. Pass an ordinance amending Chapter 24, Utilities, of the Code of Ordinances relative to establishing 
the 27th Street Sanitary Sewer Extension District, upon its first consideration. 

Allow Bills and Claims 

17. Allow Bills and Claims for October 3, 2022. 

Council Referrals 

Council Updates and Announcements 

Adjournment 

2



COMMUNITY CENTER 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, SEPTEMBER 19, 2022 

REGULAR MEETING, CITY COUNCIL 
MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN PRESIDING 

  
The City Council of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, met in Regular Session, 
pursuant to law, the rules of said Council and prior notice given each member 
thereof, at 7:00 P.M. on the above date. Members present: Schultz, deBuhr, 
Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Absent: None. University of Northern Iowa 
student Lyndsey Hubbell led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

53968 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the minutes of the Regular 
Meeting of September 6, 2022 be approved as presented and ordered of record. 
Motion carried unanimously.  

 
53969 - Mayor Green read the following proclamations: 
 

   Proclamation recognizing October 2022 as Breast Cancer Awareness Month. 
Fire Chief Bostwick provided a brief summary of the Pink Patch Project 
fundraiser benefitting the Beyond Pink Team. 

 
   Proclamation recognizing October 3-8, 2022 as Earth Science Week. BMC 

Aggregates Geologist Sherm Lundy and University of Northern Iowa students 
Laura Speese and Lyndsey Hubbell commented and provided details on “Sunday 
at the Quarry” in Raymond Iowa on October 2 from 10AM - 4PM. 

 
53970 -  Public Safety Director Berte responded to Mike Dufel, 5326 Fjord Drive, 

regarding the Orchard Hill Drive fire. Mr. Dufel also requested a third-party audit 
of the Public Safety Program. 

 
  Whitney Smith, 2207 Hawthorne Drive, also commented on the Orchard Hill 

Drive fire and requested a third-party audit. 
 
53971 - Councilmember Ganfied and Mayor Green commented on a social media post 

regarding a recent vehicle accident and determined that the information in the 
post was inaccurate and that Public Safety Officers on the scene did a fine job.   

 
53972 -  Mayor Green announced that this was the time and place for a hearing on a 

complaint issued to Zainab LLC, d/b/a Up in Smoke, 2218 College Street, for a 
second tobacco violation. Assistant City Attorney Anderson provided background 
for the tobacco complaint. There being no one present wishing to speak on 
behalf of Zainab LLC, d/b/a Up in Smoke, the Mayor declared the hearing closed 
and passed to the next order of business. 

 
    It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Harding to approve and authorize 

execution of an Order Assessing Penalty relative to a Second Tobacco Violation 
regarding Up in Smoke, 2218 College Street. Following questions and comments 
by Councilmembers Ganfield and Kruse, and responses by Assistant City 
Attorney Anderson, the motion carried unanimously. 

 

3

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 2 - 

 

53973 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield that Ordinance #3016, 
amending Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances relative to 
adoption of revised City Council Meeting Procedures, be passed upon its second 
consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the 
question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, 
Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
53974 - It was moved by Harding and seconded by Kruse that Ordinance #3017, 

amending Chapter 23, Traffic and Motor Vehicles, of the Code of Ordinances 
relative to prohibiting parking on portions of Utility Parkway, be passed upon its 
second consideration. Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put 
the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, 
Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
53975 - It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the following items on the 

Consent Calendar be received, filed and approved: 
 

 Receive and file the resignation of Beverly Michael as a member of the Health 
Trust Board. 

 Approve the following applications for beer permits and liquor licenses: 
a) Murphy USA, 518 Brandilynn Boulevard, Class C beer & Class B wine- 
renewal. 
b) Escapology Cedar Falls, 2518 Melrose Drive, Special Class C liquor - renewal. 
c) Holiday Inn & Suites Hotel/Event Center, 7400 Hudson Road, Class B liquor & 
outdoor service - renewal. 
d) The Ragged Edge Art Bar & Gallery, 504 Bluff Street, Class C liquor & outdoor 
service – renewal. 
e) Fareway Store, 214 North Magnolia Drive, Class E liquor - renewal. 
f) Fast Track Racing, 200 block West 2nd Street, Class B beer & outdoor service 
– change in ownership.  

 Motion carried unanimously. 

53976 -  It was moved by deBuhr and seconded by Harding to receive and file the City 
Council Standing Committee minutes of September 6, 2022 relative to the 
following items: 

    a) Hearst 2.0. 
b) Destination Iowa Grant Update. 
c) Orchard Hill Drive Fire Response.     

 
  Following comments by Mayor Green, the motion carried unanimously. 
 
53977 -  It was moved by Harding and seconded by Ganfield to approve the following 

recommendations of the Mayor relative to the appointment of members to Boards 
and Commissions: 

    a) Donna Mallin, Human Rights Commission, term ending 07/01/2023. 
b) Julie Kliegl, Human Rights Commission, term ending 07/01/2023. 

4

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 3 - 

 

c) Robert Wright, Human Rights Commission, term ending 07/01/2024. 
d) Anne Bonsall Hoekstra, Art & Culture Board, term ending 07/01/2026. 
e) Toni Wilson Wood, Art & Culture Board, term ending 07/01/2026. 
f) Brooke Croshier-Sidebotham, Visitors & Tourism Board, term ending 
07/01/2025. 
g) Amy Dutton, Visitors & Tourism Board, term ending 07/01/2025. 
h) Doug Johnson, Visitors & Tourism Board, term ending 07/01/2025. 
i) James Langel, Parks & Recreation Commission, term ending 06/30/2025. 

   
  Following comments and questions by Councilmember Kruse, and responses by 

Mayor Green, the motion carried unanimously. 
 
53978 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Harding that the following resolutions 

be introduced and adopted: 
 

 Resolution #22,917, approving the recommendation for the reappointment of the 
Acting Police Chief. 

 Resolution #22,918, approving and authorizing execution of an Agreement for 
Animal Services with the Cedar Bend Humane Society for October 1, 2022-June 
30, 2027. 

 Resolution #22,919, approving an Application for Tax Abatement under the 
College Hill Urban Revitalization Plan for residential building improvements 
located at 1803 College Street. 

 Resolution #22,920, approving an Application for Tax Abatement under the 
College Hill Urban Revitalization Plan for residential building improvements 
located at 1809 College Street. 

 Resolution #22,921, approving and authorizing execution of a Service/Product 
Agreement with Ostby Dance relative to providing Ballroom Dance classes. 

 Resolution #22,922, approving and authorizing submission of an Iowa Tourism 
Grant application for Cedar Falls Pocket Guides and Information Kiosks. 

 Resolution #22,923, approving and authorizing submission of a Destination Iowa 
grant application and designating the Mayor as the official representative of the 
City relative to the Cedar Valley River Experience Project. 

 Resolution #22,924, granting the Iowa Economic Development certain financial 
assurances for the Cedar Falls match portion of the Destination Iowa Grant 
request relative to the Cedar Valley River Experience Project. 

 Resolution #22,925, approving and accepting the contract and bond of Iowa 
Flatworks, Inc. for the 2022 Sidewalk Assessment Project – Zone 5.  

 Resolution #22,926, approving the Certificate of Completion and accepting the 
work of Pirc-Tobin Construction, Inc. for the West 27th Street Sanitary Sewer 
Extension Project. 

Following due consideration by the Council, the Mayor put the question on the 

5

Item 1.



 
 

 

- 4 - 

 

motion and upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers voted. 
Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn. Nay: None. Motion 
carried. The Mayor then declared Resolutions #22,917 through #22,926 duly 
passed and adopted. 

53979 -  It was moved by Harding and seconded by Dunn that a resolution approving and 
authorizing submission of a Railroad Crossing Elimination (RCE) Grant 
application to the Federal Railroad Administration; and approving and authorizing 
the local match relative to abandoning and removing the Cedar Falls Rail Spur, 
be adopted. Following questions and comments by Councilmembers Sires, 
deBuhr, Schultz, Kruse, Mayor Green, and Duane Hamilton, 1911 Victory Drive, 
and responses by Cedar Falls Utilities General Manager Steve Bernard, City 
Administrator Gaines and Iowa Northern Railway Company General Manager Bill 
Magee, the Mayor put the question on the motion and upon call of the roll, the 
following named Councilmembers voted. Aye: Kruse, Harding, Dunn. Nay: 
Schultz, deBuhr, Ganfield, Dunn. Motion failed.   

 
53980 -  It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Harding that the bills and claims of 

September 19, 2022 be allowed as presented, and that the Controller/City 
Treasurer be authorized to issue City checks in the proper amounts and on the 
proper funds in payment of the same. Upon call of the roll, the following named 
Councilmembers voted. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, 
Dunn. Nay: None. Motion carried. 

 
53981 - Mayor Green responded to a comment by Councilmember Kruse regarding 

changing the order of Council Referrals and Council Updates and 
Announcements. 

 
53982 -     It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Harding to adjourn to Executive 

Session to discuss Property Acquisition per Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(j) to 
discuss the purchase or sale of particular real estate only where premature 
disclosure could be reasonably expected to increase the price the governmental 
body would have to pay for that property or reduce the price the governmental 
body would receive for that property; and for discussion of the City 
Administrator’s performance pursuant to Iowa Code Section 21.5(1)(i) and City 
Code Section 2-217. Upon call of the roll, the following named Councilmembers 
voted.  Aye: Schultz, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, Dunn.  Nay: None.  Motion 
carried. 

 
     The City Council adjourned to Executive Session at 8:00 P.M. 
 
     Mayor Green reconvened the Council meeting at 8:52 P.M.  
 
53983 - It was moved by Ganfield and seconded by Harding that the meeting be 

adjourned at 8:53 P.M.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
    ________________________________ 
  Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

6

Item 1.



 

   MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

 

 

 

 
 

LEADER IN ME WEEK 
OCTOBER 3-7, 2022  

 

WHEREAS, Leader Valley is a not-for-profit initiative designed to help Cedar 
Valley students and residents develop the three “C’s” of leadership – Character, 
Competence, and Contribution; and 

WHEREAS, Leader Valley’s Leader in Me program equips educators to be leaders 
and foster leadership among students; helps students develop essential soft skills 
they will need for a lifetime of effectiveness; workforce; develops the talent that 
our local businesses need to remain viable; and transforms school cultures with 
an emphasis on leadership development; and 

WHEREAS, during the current school year, Leader Valley will partner with more 
than 1,400 educators to reach over 11,800 students in 26 Cedar Valley public and 
private schools in this outstanding leadership development initiative; and 

WHEREAS, during the first full week of October, students, families, educators, 
businesses, and community members are celebrating the impact of the Leader In 
Me program across the Cedar Valley; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Robert M. Green, Mayor of the City of Cedar Falls, do 
hereby proclaim October 3-7, 2022 as Leader in Me Week throughout the city, 
and I encourage Cedar Falls residents, businesses and organizations to join me in 
actively supporting the efforts of Leader Valley to develop the next generation of 
business and community leaders through the Leader in Me program; and I further 
encourage residents to seek opportunities to participate in this important 
collaboration for the future economic and civic vitality of our community. 

Signed this 28th day of September, 2022. 
 
 
______________________________________                                          
Mayor Robert M. Green 

7

Item 2.



 

   MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 

 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

 

 

 

 
 

FIRE PREVENTION WEEK 
OCTOBER 9-15, 2022  

 

WHEREAS, structure fires are a serious public safety concern across the nation, 
because homes are the locations where people are at greatest risk from fire; and 

WHEREAS, the National Fire Protection Association® has determined that 
356,500 home fires caused 2,580 civilian deaths in 2020 alone; and 

WHEREAS, smoke alarms provide warning to residents well before our own 
senses can, particularly when sleeping, and this warning is essential when the 
time available to escape may be as little as two minutes; and  

WHEREAS, Cedar Falls residents who have planned and practiced a home fire 
escape plan are more prepared and will be more likely to survive a fire; and 

WHEREAS, it is vital that smoke and carbon monoxide alarms meet the needs of 
all family members, including those with sensory or physical disabilities; and  

WHEREAS, the Fire Prevention Week™ theme for 2022, “Fire won’t wait. Plan 
your escape.™” is designed to encourage residents to take personal steps to 
increase their safety from fire, especially in their homes; 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Robert M. Green, Mayor of the City of Cedar Falls, do 
hereby proclaim October 9-15, 2022 as Fire Prevention Week throughout the 
city, and I urge all residents to ensure everyone in their home can recognize 
smoke and carbon monoxide alarms and can prevent, respond to, and escape 
from a home fire; and I further encourage all residents to continually practice the 
fire prevention measures being broadcast by Cedar Falls Fire Rescue and other 
agencies during this week-long safety campaign. 

Signed this 12th day of September, 2022. 
 
 
______________________________________                                          
Mayor Robert M. Green 

8

Item 3.



   MAYOR ROBERT M. GREEN 

 

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

220 CLAY STREET 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 

319-273-8600 

FAX 319-268-5126 
M E M O R A N D U M 

Office of the Mayor  

 

 FROM: Mayor Robert M. Green 

 TO: City Council 

 DATE: August 31, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Change Proposal for the City Code Regarding Council Meetings 

 REF: (a) CFD 1121.22: Council Meeting Procedures 

1. Summary.  Given the recent update to reference (a), I respectfully request five updates to the 
City Code to remove unnecessary duplication and clarify the code. The below changes would 
not modify any existing processes or authorities. I have obtained legal counsel from the City 
Attorney; he has expressed no concerns to me regarding the below changes.  

2. Requested Changes.  

 Change 1: Delete the existing Section 2-46 regarding meeting quorums: This 
statement is an unnecessary replication of Rule 2.3 in reference (a).  

 Change 2: Add a new Section 2-46 regarding council meeting procedures: This new 
language specifies that the city council shall establish and maintain council meeting 
procedures. In change #3 below, I request to remove the list of specific standing 
committees from the City Code and to instead permanently maintain them in the Council 
Meeting Procedures. In order to cite that document, I believe it is proper and logical to 
establish that document here in the City Code first.  

 Change 3: Remove the list of specific standing committees from Sec 2-68(b): This 
list is already maintained in the Council Meeting Procedures, so should be removed from 
the City Code.  Duplication causes confusion during times when the City Code and Council 
Meeting Procedures do not match, and this change will eliminate the problem. 

 Change 4: Delete Sec 2-70 to 2-72 regarding committee processes: These sections 
describe information provided to committees, committee reporting, and discharge of 
special committees already exist in reference (a). 

 Change 5: Delete Sec 2-103 to 2-130 regarding parliamentary rules: These rules are 
already contained in the Council Meeting Procedures, and provide no added value here. 
No similar language exists in the 30+ other Iowa municipal codes I have reviewed. 

2. Thank you for your consideration of these housekeeping changes, in the interest of continuous 
improvement of local government.  Please contact me with any questions. 

Encl: (1) Proposed changes to City Code of Ordinances 

### 

9

Item 4.



ORDINANCE NO. ___________ 

AN ORDINANCE (1) REPEALING SECTION 2-46, QUORUM, OF DIVISION 1, 

GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE II, CITY COUNCIL, AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF 

A NEW SECTION 2-46, ESTABLISHMENT OF COUNCIL MEETING 

PROCEDURES; (2) REPEALING DIVISION 2, COMMITTEES, OF ARTICLE II, CITY 

COUNCIL, AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF A NEW DIVISION 2, COMMITTEES, 

CONSISTING OF SECTION 2-68, APPOINTMENT; STANDING COMMITTEES, AND 

SECTION 2-69, NUMBER OF MEMBERS; AND (3) REPEALING DIVISION 3, 

RULES OF PROCEDURE, OF ARTICLE II, CITY COUNCIL, ALL CONTAINED IN 

CHAPTER 2, ADMINISTRATION, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, TO ELIMINATE COUNCIL PROCEDURES FROM THE 

CODE OF ORDINANCES. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

               Section 1.  Section 2-46, Quorum, of Division 1, Generally, of Article II, City Council, of 

Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby 

repealed in its entirety and a new Section 2-46, Establishment of Meeting Procedures, is 

enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 2-46. - Quorum. 

A majority of the whole number of members of the council shall be necessary to constitute a 

quorum. Less than a quorum may adjourn from time to time. 

(Code 2017, § 2-42) 

Sec. 2-46. – Establishment of council meeting procedures, 

The Cedar Falls city council shall establish for itself, and update from time to time, rules for 

the conduct of its regular meetings, committee meetings, and work sessions.  These council 

meeting procedures shall include parliamentary guidance particular to the needs of the 

council. 

                 Section 2.  Division 2, Committees, of Article II, City Council, of Chapter 2, 

Administration, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in 

its entirety and a new Division 2, Committees, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

DIVISION 2. - COMMITTEES 

Sec. 2-68. - Appointment; standing committees. 

 (a) Anyll standing committees of the council shall be appointed by the mayor, and anyll 

special committees shall be appointed by the mayor unless specifically directed by the 

council. All Sstanding committees of the council shall be appointed by the mayor annually at 

10

Item 4.



the first regular meeting of the council in January of each year, or as soon thereafter as 

practicable, and the first person named on each committee shall be the chairperson of such 

committee. 

(b) Standing committees of the council may be established within the council meeting 

procedures provided for in Section 2-46.   

The following shall be the standing committees: 

(1) Administration.  

(2) Public works. 

(3) Community relations and planning. 

 

(Code 2017, § 2-61) 

Sec. 2-69. - Number of members. 

(a) The Sstanding committees of the council shall consist of seven members each. 

(b) All Sspecial committees of the council shall consist of five members each, unless some 

other number is specified by the resolution which appoints such special committee. 

(Code 2017, § 2-62; Ord. No. 2605, § 1, 10-23-2006) 

Sec. 2-70. - Distribution of information when matter referred to committee. 

The city clerk shall forward all the papers to the appropriate committees and officers as soon 

as possible after the referral to a committee of the council has been made. 

(Code 2017, § 2-63) 

Sec. 2-71. - Reports. 

Standing and special committees of the council to whom references are made, in all cases, 

shall report in writing the state of facts, with their opinion, which opinion shall be summed up 

in the form of an order, resolution or recommendation, unless otherwise ordered by the 

council. 

(Code 2017, § 2-64) 

Sec. 2-72. - Discharge of special committees. 

On the acceptance of a final report from a special committee of the council, the committee 

shall be considered discharged without a vote, unless otherwise ordered. 

11

Item 4.



(Code 2017, § 2-65) 

Secs. 2-737069—2-102. - Reserved. 

           

             Section 3.  Division 3, Rules of Procedure, of Article II, City Council, of Chapter 2, 

Administration, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in 

its entirety. 

 

INTRODUCED: _______________________________________________ 

PASSED 1ST CONSIDERATION: _________________________________ 

PASSED 2ND CONSIDERATION: _________________________________ 

PASSED 3RD CONSIDERATIONI: _________________________________ 

ADOPTED: ___________________________________________________ 

 

                                                                                     _________________________ 

                                                                                       Robert M. Green, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12

Item 4.



ORDINANCE NO. 3016 

AN ORDINANCE (1) REPEALING SECTION 2-46, QUORUM, OF DIVISION 1, 

GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE II, CITY COUNCIL, AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF 

A NEW SECTION 2-46, ESTABLISHMENT OF COUNCIL MEETING 

PROCEDURES; (2) REPEALING DIVISION 2, COMMITTEES, OF ARTICLE II, CITY 

COUNCIL, AND ENACTING IN LIEU THEREOF A NEW DIVISION 2, COMMITTEES, 

CONSISTING OF SECTION 2-68, APPOINTMENT; STANDING COMMITTEES, AND 

SECTION 2-69, NUMBER OF MEMBERS; AND (3) REPEALING DIVISION 3, 

RULES OF PROCEDURE, OF ARTICLE II, CITY COUNCIL, ALL CONTAINED IN 

CHAPTER 2, ADMINISTRATION, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY 

OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, TO ELIMINATE COUNCIL PROCEDURES FROM THE 

CODE OF ORDINANCES. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

               Section 1.  Section 2-46, Quorum, of Division 1, Generally, of Article II, City Council, of 

Chapter 2, Administration, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby 

repealed in its entirety and a new Section 2-46, Establishment of Meeting Procedures, is 

enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

Sec. 2-46. – Establishment of council meeting procedures. 

The Cedar Falls city council shall establish for itself, and update from time to time, rules for 

the conduct of its regular meetings, committee meetings, and work sessions.  These council 

meeting procedures shall include parliamentary guidance particular to the needs of the 

council. 

                 Section 2.  Division 2, Committees, of Article II, City Council, of Chapter 2, 

Administration, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in 

its entirety and a new Division 2, Committees, is enacted in lieu thereof, as follows: 

DIVISION 2. - COMMITTEES 

Sec. 2-68. - Appointment; standing committees. 

 (a) Any standing committees of the council shall be appointed by the mayor, and any special 

committees shall be appointed by the mayor unless specifically directed by the council. 

Standing committees of the council shall be appointed by the mayor annually at the f irst 

regular meeting of the council in January of each year, or as soon thereafter as practicable, 

and the first person named on each committee shall be the chairperson of such committee. 

(b) Standing committees of the council may be established within the council meeting 

procedures provided for in Section 2-46.   

Secs. 2-69—2-102. - Reserved. 

13

Item 4.



           

             Section 3.  Division 3, Rules of Procedure, of Article II, City Council, of Chapter 2, 

Administration, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby repealed in 

its entirety. 

 

INTRODUCED:     September 6, 2022   

PASSED 1st CONSIDERATION:   September 6, 2022   

PASSED 2nd CONSIDERATION:   September 19, 2022   

PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:       

ADOPTED:          

 

 

___________________________ 

                                                                           Robert M. Green, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

14

Item 4.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
  
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 
 DATE: September 6, 2022 
 
SUBJECT:  Updates to City Code Section 23-374 – Parking Prohibited on Specific 

Streets 
 
The no parking ordinance on Utility Parkway from Waterloo Road to Irving Street 
currently exists on the northerly and westerly side of the street. Cedar Falls Utilities 
(CFU) has requested that the east and south side of the street within these same limits 
also be considered for no parking. Parking is currently allowed on the east and south 
side of Utility Parkway. This area creates concerns of a congested corridor that can lead 
to single lane traffic and also potential vehicular movement conflicts onto and from 
Waterloo Road, 12th Street and Irving Street.   
 
The Engineering Division is recommending that the current parking that exists on the 
east south side of Utility Parkway from Waterloo Road to Irving Street be restricted and 
designated as permanently prohibited parking. This will make the street safer with 
regards to traffic activities and vehicular movements within the corridor from Waterloo 
Road to Irving Street.   
 
The Engineering Division is proposing changes to City Code Section 23-374 – Parking 
Prohibited on Specific Streets so the code will match the proposed limits of the no 
parking along Utility Parkway. Please see the attached changes to City Code Section 
23-374 – Parking Prohibited on Specific Streets.  
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends approval to set 
the newly defined area to prohibit on-street parking. This area is shown on the attached 
exhibit.    
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact me. 
 
xc: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 
 

15

Item 5.



 
    

16

Item 5.



17

Item 5.

WickeD
Line

WickeD
PolyLine

WickeD
Line

WickeD
PolyLine

WickeD
Text Box
Current No Parking Limits

WickeD
Arrow

WickeD
Text Box
Proposed Area of Additional Prohibited Parking

WickeD
Arrow



 

 

 

July 29, 2022 

 

Mr. Ron Gaines, City Administrator 

City of Cedar Falls 

220 Clay Street 

Cedar Falls, IA 50613 

RE:  Utility Parkway – request for No Parking Ordinance 

Dear Ron:  

On July 28, 2022, we discussed CFU’s concerns with traffic activity along Utility Parkway with you and Chase 

Schrage.     

Specifically, we respectfully request the City Council consider a change its street parking ordinance, 

specifically City Code §23‐374, so that parking would be prohibited on both sides of Utility Parkway. 

Currently, the ordinance prohibits parking on the west and north sides from the east curb line of Waterloo 

Road northerly and easterly to the entrance to Washington Park. We would appreciate the prohibition of 

parking on the east side of Utility Parkway from the east curb line of Waterloo Road northerly and easterly to 

the east curb line of Irving Street.  I have spoken with Western Home leadership (a neighboring employer), 

and they have no objections to this request. 

 

Thank you for your assistance, as well as the Council’s consideration.  

Sincerely, 

 
Steven E. Bernard 
General Manager/CEO 

18

Item 5.



 

 

 
    Created: 2021-04-12 12:55:40 [EST] 

(Supp. No. 9) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

Sec. 23-374. Parking prohibited on specific streets. 

When signs are erected giving notice thereof, no person shall park a vehicle at any time upon any of the 
streets or portions of streets enumerated in this section.  

Street  Portion Where  
Parking Prohibited  

Utility Parkway  On the west and north sides from the east curb line of Waterloo Road northerly and 
easterly to the entrance to Washington Park.  

Utility Parkway On both sides of the street from Waterloo Road to Irving Street. 

(Ord. No. 2945, § 2, 6-17-2019) 

19

Item 5.



 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 3017 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 23-374, PARKING PROHIBITED ON 
SPECIFIC STREETS, OF DIVISION 1, GENERALLY, OF ARTICLE IV, 
STOPPING, STANDING AND PARKING, OF CHAPTER 23, TRAFFIC AND 
MOTOR VEHICLES, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, BY STRIKING THE SUBSECTION PROHIBITING 
PARKING ON PORTIONS OF UTILITY PARKWAY, AND ENACTING A NEW 
SUBSECTION PROHIBITING PARKING ON ALL OF UTILITY PARKWAY.  
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 
 
Section 1.  The unnumbered subsection prohibiting parking on portions of Utility 
Parkway contained in Section 23-374, Parking prohibited on specific streets, of Division 
1, Generally, of Article IV, Stopping, Standing and Parking, of Chapter 23, Traffic and 
Motor Vehicles, is hereby stricken in its entirety and a new unnumbered subsection 
prohibiting parking on both sides of Utility Parkway contained in Section 23-374 is 
enacted, as follows: 

 

            Street                       Portion Where Parking Prohibited 

Utility Parkway On both sides of the street from Waterloo Road to Irving 
Street. 

 
 
 
 
INTRODUCED:     September 6, 2022    
 
PASSED 1st CONSIDERATION:   September 6, 2022    
 
PASSED 2nd CONSIDERATION:   September 19, 2022    
 
PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:         
 
ADOPTED:            
 
 
 

_____________________________ 
                                                                           Robert M. Green, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

20

Item 5.



MEETING OF STANDING COMMITTEES 
Community Center 

September 19, 2022 
 

The meeting of Standing Committees met at the Community Center at 5:50 p.m. on September 
19, 2022, with the following Committee persons in attendance: Councilmembers Susan deBuhr, 
Kelly Dunn, Daryl Kruse, Simon Harding, Dustin Ganfield, Gil Schultz, and Dave Sires. Staff 
members from all City Departments and members of the community attended in person.   

Community Development Committee: 

Chair Harding called the meeting to order and introduced the first item on the Community 
Development Committee, Zoning Amendments Voting Threshold and introduced Stephanie 
Houk Sheetz, Community Development Director. Director Sheetz stated, August 15, 2022 
Council referred this item to the Community Development Committee, for consideration of 
removing 2/3 vote required to overrule Planning & Zoning Commission, referencing Code 
Sections 26-4(c) and 18-23(5). Director Sheetz gave an overview of the current ordinance, 
history, research of seven communities, legal opinion, and options for Council consideration.  
Councilmembers discussed pros and cons of 2/3 vs. 3/4, if there should be a different threshold 
based on the type of zoning amendments (text/map), and an option for a joint meeting with 
Planning & Zoning Commission and City Councilmembers when P&Z recommends denial of a 
comprehensive plan (18-23(5)) or zoning amendment (26-4(c)). Chair Harding opened the 
meeting for public comments. It was moved by Kruse and seconded by Ganfield to direct staff to 
draft an ordinance amending the Code of Ordinance to a simple majority in both Sections 26-
4(c) and 18-23(5). Jim Brown, Executive Director, Cedar Falls Economic Development 
Corporation expressed concerns with removing the super majority requirement. The motion was 
put to vote.  Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Ganfield, and Sires; Nay: Dunn and Harding. Motion 
carried. 

Chair Harding introduced the second item on the Community Development Committee, 
Downtown Public Restroom Study and introduced Stephanie Houk Sheetz, Community 
Development Director.  Director Sheetz stated, July 18, 2022, Council referred this item to the 
Community Development Committee to determine if a public restroom study downtown is 
warranted.  Director Sheetz gave an overview of the public restrooms in the downtown vicinity, 
public event restroom requirements, and building code requirements on restrooms. 
Councilmembers discussed the building code requirements, signage, QR code, restroom 
partnership, and ADA accessibility. Following comments by Directory Sheetz, it was moved by 
Kruse and seconded by Dunn to direct staff to bring creative options to the Committee, that 
included signage for restrooms, QR code with restroom locations, and restroom locations 
provided in the Cedar Falls app. Following comments by Councilmembers, it was moved by 
Ganfield and seconded by Kruse to amend the motion to direct staff to develop and implement 
signage for restrooms, QR code with restroom locations, provide restroom locations in the 
Cedar Falls app, and review ADA compliance.  Following comments by Councilmembers, and 
responses by City Attorney Rogers and City Administrator Gaines, the motion to amend carried 
unanimously.  Chair Harding opened the meeting for public comments.  Rosemary Beach, 5018 
Sage Road, expressed concerns on available restrooms and requested them to be handicap 
accessible. Chair Harding then put the question on the original motion, as amended, and was 
put to vote. Aye: Schultz, deBuhr, Kruse, Harding, Ganfield, Sires, and Dunn; Nay: none. Motion 
carried. 

Meeting adjourned at 6:52 p.m. 

Minutes by Kim Kerr, Administrative Supervisor 

21

Item 6.



22

Item 7.



23

Item 7.



24

Item 7.



25

Item 7.



26

Item 7.



27

Item 7.



28

Item 7.



29

Item 7.



30

Item 7.



31

Item 7.



32

Item 7.



33

Item 7.



34

Item 7.



35

Item 7.



36

Item 7.



37

Item 7.



38

Item 7.



39

Item 7.



40

Item 7.



41

Item 7.



42

Item 7.



43

Item 7.



44

Item 7.



45

Item 7.



46

Item 7.



47

Item 7.



48

Item 7.



49

Item 7.



50

Item 7.



51

Item 7.



52

Item 7.



53

Item 8.



54

Item 9.



   DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY SERVICES 

  POLICE OPERATIONS 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS 

  4600 SOUTH MAIN STREET 
  CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613 
 

  319-273-8612 
 

MEMORANDUM 

To:  Mayor Green and City Councilmembers 

From:  Craig Berte, Public Safety Services Director 

  Mark Howard, Acting Police Chief 

Date:  September 26, 2022 

Re:  Beer/Liquor License Applications 

Police Operations has received applications for liquor licenses and/ or wine or beer 
permits. We find no records that would prohibit these license and permits and 
recommend approval. 

Name of Applicants:  

a) Blue Room, 201 Main Street, Class C liquor - renewal. 

b) Lark Brewing, 6301 University Avenue, Class C liquor, Special Class A beer & 
outdoor service – renewal. 

c) The Landmark, 107 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 

d) Tony's La Pizzeria, 407 Main Street, Class C liquor & outdoor service - renewal. 

e) Casey's General Store, 601 Main Street, Class E liquor - renewal. 

f) Casey's General Store, 601 Main Street, Class E liquor – change in ownership. 

g) Amvets, 1934 Irving Street, Class A liquor & outdoor service - temporary 
expansion of outdoor service area. (October 1 - November 30,2022) 

55

Item 10.



56

Item 11.



57

Item 11.



58

Item 11.



59

Item 11.



60

Item 11.



61

Item 11.



62

Item 11.



63

Item 11.



64

Item 11.



65

Item 11.



66

Item 11.



67

Item 11.



68

Item 11.



69

Item 11.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Luke Andreasen, PE 
 
 DATE: September 26, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: Fiber Optic License Agreement 
   Aureon Network Services 
   18th Street, Waterloo Road, and University Avenue 
 
Enclosed is a proposed License Agreement between the City of Cedar Falls and Aureon 
Network Services to install an additional long-distance telecommunications system 
consisting of fiber optic cable within the public right-of way of the City, in order to extend 
and upgrade services owned by Aureon Network Services along 18th Street, Waterloo 
Road and University Avenue.  
 
The City of Cedar Falls has entered into previous license agreements with Iowa 
Network Services, now Aureon Network Services. The proposed License Agreement 
follows the terms and conditions set forth in the earlier agreements and is intended to 
protect the City of Cedar Falls right-of way and manage and regulate in a manner 
consistent with federal and state law. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department recommends your approval 
of this proposed License Agreement. 
 
 
xc:  David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
 Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 

Lisa Roeding, Controller/City Treasurer  
 
 
  
 

70

Item 12.



71

Item 12.



72

Item 12.



73

Item 12.



74

Item 12.



75

Item 12.



76

Item 12.



77

Item 12.



78

Item 12.



79

Item 12.



80

Item 12.



81

Item 12.



EXHIBIT A 
TEXT DESCRIPTION OF ALIGNMENT FOR CEDAR FALLS FIBER OPTIC CABLE INSTALLATION 

Page 1 of 9 
 

The facility shall consist of one (1) two (2”) inch diameter High-Density Polyethylene (HDPE) duct with 96 

count fiber cable installed at minimum depths of: sixty (60”) inches below public roadways, forty-eight 

(48”) inches below private driveways, and forty-two (42”) inch “plan depths” in grassed areas.  

In general terms, within the south right-of-way of E 18th Street, south and north right-of-way of 

Waterloo Road, and the north right-of-way of University Avenue and more particularly described as 

follows: 

1. The facility shall begin at the existing handhole located in the south right-of-way of E 18th Street 

at a point being thirty-seven (37’) feet southerly of the centerline of E 18th Street at the E 18th 

Street station 14+04 also being station 1+00 of the facility alignment as shown on sheet “3 of 

41”, Project No. 2106523, Exhibit B, a copy of which is attached to this Exhibit A. 

2. Thence easterly on the south side of E 18th Street thirty-two (32’) feet to station 1+32 @ 60” 

min. depth below East Street as shown on sheet “3 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

3. Thence easterly on the south side of E 18th Street one-hundred and thirty-two (132’) to station 

2+64 @ 42” min. depth and overpass the existing north-south water main by a twenty-four (24”) 

inch minimum as shown on sheet “3 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

4. Thence easterly on the south side of E 18th Street fifty-nine (59’) feet to station 3+23 @ 48” min. 

depth below private drive as shown on sheet “3 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

5. Thence easterly on the south side of E 18th Street one-hundred and twenty-six (126’) feet to 

station 4+49 @ 48” min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “3 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

6. Thence easterly on the south side of E 18th Street fifty-seven (57’) feet to station 5+06 @ 48” 

min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “3 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

7. Thence easterly on the south side of E 18th Street fifty-seven (57’) to station 5+63 @ 42” min. 

depth and overpass the existing north-south water main by a twenty-four (24”) inch minimum 

as shown on sheet “3 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

8. Thence easterly on the south side of E 18th Street sixty-seven (67’) feet to a proposed hand-hole 

at station 6+30 also being station 19+37, 37’ Rt of the E 18th Street alignment and station 

102+03, 43’ Rt of the Waterloo Road alignment as shown on sheet “5 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

9. Thence southeasterly on the south side of Waterloo Road seven (7’) feet to station 6+37 @ 42” 

min. depth and overpass the existing east-west water main by a twenty-four (24”) inch 

minimum as shown on sheet “5 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

10. Thence southeasterly on the south side of Waterloo Road thirty (30’) feet to station 6+67 @ 42” 

min. depth and overpass the existing north-south storm sewer by a twenty-four (24”) inch 

minimum as shown on sheet “5 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

11. Thence southeasterly on the south side of Waterloo Road twenty-seven (27’) feet to station 

6+94 @ 42” min. depth and overpass the existing north-south water main by a twenty-four (24”) 

inch minimum as shown on sheet “5 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

12. Thence southeasterly on the south side of Waterloo Road nine (9’) feet to station 7+03 @ 60” 

min. depth below Valley Park Drive as shown on sheet “5 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

13. Thence southeasterly on the south side of Waterloo Road sixty-one (61’) feet to station 7+64 @ 

42” min. depth and overpass the existing east-west storm sewer by a twenty-four (24”) inch 

minimum as shown on sheet “5 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

14. Thence southeasterly on the south side of Waterloo Road two-hundred and eleven (211’) feet to 

station 9+75 @ 48” min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “5 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

82

Item 12.



EXHIBIT A 
TEXT DESCRIPTION OF ALIGNMENT FOR CEDAR FALLS FIBER OPTIC CABLE INSTALLATION 

Page 2 of 9 
 

15. Thence southeasterly on the south side of Waterloo Road two-hundred and fifty-eight (258’) 

feet to station 12+33 @ 48” min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “7 of 41” of said 

Exhibit B. 

16. Thence southeasterly on the south side of Waterloo Road one-hundred and ninety-five (195’) 

feet to station 14+28 @ 48” min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “7 of 41” of said 

Exhibit B. 

17. Thence southeasterly on the south side of Waterloo Road seventy-two (72’) feet to station 

15+00 @ 48” min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “7 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

18. Thence southeasterly on the south side of Waterloo Road seventy-two (72’) feet to station 

15+72 @ 48” min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “7 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

19. Thence southeasterly on the south side of Waterloo Road fifty (50’) feet to station 16+22 @ 42” 

min. depth and overpass the existing east-west water main by a twenty-four (24”) inch 

minimum as shown on sheet “9 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

20. Thence southeasterly on the south side of Waterloo Road three (3’) feet to station 16+25 @ 42” 

min. depth and overpass the existing east-west water main by a twenty-four (24”) inch 

minimum as shown on sheet “9 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

21. Thence southeasterly on the south side of Waterloo Road one (1’) feet to station 16+26 @ 42” 

min. depth and overpass the existing east-west water main by a twenty-four (24”) inch 

minimum as shown on sheet “9 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

22. Thence southeasterly on the south side of Waterloo Road one-hundred and sixty-three (163’) 

feet to station 17+89 @ 42” min. depth and underpass the existing east-west water main by a 

twenty-four (24”) inch minimum as shown on sheet “9 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

23. Thence southeasterly on the south side of Waterloo Road seventeen (17’) feet to station 18+06 

@ 60” min. depth below Madison Street as shown on sheet “9 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

24. Thence southeasterly on the south side of Waterloo Road ninety-four (94’) feet to station 19+00 

@ 48” min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “9 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

25. Thence southeasterly on the south side of Waterloo Road ninety-two (92’) feet to station 19+92 

@ 48” min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “9 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

26. Thence southeasterly on the south side of Waterloo Road one-hundred and seventeen (117’) 

feet to station 21+09 @ 42” min. depth and underpass the existing north-south storm sewer by 

a twenty-four (24”) inch minimum as shown on sheet “9 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

27. Thence southeasterly on the south side of Waterloo Road six (6’) feet to station 21+15 @ 42” 

min. depth and underpass the existing east-west box culvert by a twenty-four (24”) inch 

minimum as shown on sheet “9 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

28. Thence southeasterly on the south side of Waterloo Road two-hundred and twenty-two (222’) 

feet to station 23+37 @ 42” min. depth and overpass the existing east-west sanitary sewer by a 

twenty-four (24”) inch minimum as shown on sheet “11 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

29. Thence southeasterly on the south side of Waterloo Road three (3’) feet to station 23+40 @ 42” 

min. depth and overpass the existing east-west sanitary sewer by a twenty-four (24”) inch 

minimum as shown on sheet “11 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

30. Thence southeasterly on the south side of Waterloo Road two-hundred and eight (208’) feet to 

station 25+48 @ 60” min. depth below Royal Drive as shown on sheet “11 of 41” of said Exhibit 

B. 

83

Item 12.



EXHIBIT A 
TEXT DESCRIPTION OF ALIGNMENT FOR CEDAR FALLS FIBER OPTIC CABLE INSTALLATION 

Page 3 of 9 
 

31. Thence southeasterly on the south side of Waterloo Road one-hundred and fifty-nine (159’) feet 

to station 27+07 @ 48” min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “11 of 41” of said 

Exhibit B. 

32. Thence southeasterly on the south side of Waterloo Road sixty-four (64’) feet to station 27+71 

@ 48” min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “11 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

33. Thence southeasterly on the south side of Waterloo Road forty-one (41’) feet to station 28+12 

@ 42” min. depth and overpass the existing east-west sanitary sewer by a twenty-four (24”) inch 

minimum as shown on sheet “13 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

34. Thence southeasterly on the south side of Waterloo Road forty-four (44’) feet to station 28+56 

@ 48” min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “13 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

35. Thence southeasterly on the south side of Waterloo Road seventy-eight (78’) feet to station 

29+34 @ 48” min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “13 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

36. Thence southeasterly on the south side of Waterloo Road seven-hundred and thirty-five (735’) 

feet to a proposed hand-hole at station 36+69 also being station 132+43, 36’ Rt of the Waterloo 

Road alignment as shown on sheet “15 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

37. Thence northeasterly on the south side of Waterloo Road nine (9’) feet to station 36+78 @ 42” 

min. depth and overpass the existing north-south storm sewer by a twenty-four (24”) inch 

minimum as shown on sheet “15 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

38. Thence northeasterly twenty-seven (27’) feet to station 37+05 @ 60” min. depth below 

Waterloo Road as shown on sheet “15 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

39. Thence northeasterly on the north side of Waterloo Road thirty-six (36’) feet to station 37+41 @ 

42” min. depth and overpass the existing north-south sanitary sewer by a twenty-four (24”) inch 

minimum as shown on sheet “15 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

40. Thence northeasterly on the north side of Waterloo Road six (6’) feet to a proposed hand hole at 

station 37+47 also being station 132+43, 42.5’ Lt of the Waterloo Road alignment as shown on 

sheet “15 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

41. Thence southeasterly on the north side of Waterloo Road one-hundred and twenty-nine (129’) 

feet to station 38+76 @ 48” min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “15 of 41” of said 

Exhibit B. 

42. Thence southeasterly on the north side of Waterloo Road sixteen (16’) feet to station 38+92 @ 

42” min. depth and overpass the existing east-west water main by a twenty-four (24”) inch 

minimum as shown on sheet “15 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

43. Thence southeasterly on the north side of Waterloo Road fifty-three (53’) feet to station 39+45 

@ 42” min. depth and overpass the existing east-west water main by a twenty-four (24”) inch 

minimum as shown on sheet “15 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

44. Thence southeasterly on the north side of Waterloo Road thirty-five (35’) feet to station 39+80 

@ 48” min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “15 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

45. Thence southeasterly on the north side of Waterloo Road twenty-seven (27’) feet to station 

40+07 @ 42” min. depth and underpass the existing east-west water main by a twenty-four 

(24”) inch minimum as shown on sheet “15 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

46. Thence southeasterly on the north side of Waterloo Road one (1’) feet to station 40+08 @ 48” 

min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “15 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

84

Item 12.



EXHIBIT A 
TEXT DESCRIPTION OF ALIGNMENT FOR CEDAR FALLS FIBER OPTIC CABLE INSTALLATION 

Page 4 of 9 
 

47. Thence southeasterly on the north side of Waterloo Road one-hundred and thirty-four (134’) 

feet to station 41+42 @ 48” min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “17 of 41” of said 

Exhibit B. 

48. Thence southeasterly on the north side of Waterloo Road one-hundred and four (104’) feet to 

station 42+46 @ 42” min. depth and underpass the existing east-west water main by a twenty-

four (24”) inch minimum as shown on sheet “17 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

49. Thence southeasterly on the north side of Waterloo Road nineteen (19’) feet to station 42+65 @ 

48” min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “17 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

50. Thence southeasterly on the north side of Waterloo Road thirteen (13’) feet to station 42+78 @ 

42” min. depth and overpass the existing north-south sanitary sewer by a twenty-four (24”) inch 

minimum as shown on sheet “17 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

51. Thence southeasterly on the north side of Waterloo Road one-hundred and forty (140’) feet to 

station 44+18 @ 42” min. depth and overpass the existing east-west water main by a twenty-

four (24”) inch minimum as shown on sheet “17 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

52. Thence southeasterly on the north side of Waterloo Road forty-nine (49’) feet to station 44+67 

@ 48” min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “17 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

53. Thence southeasterly on the north side of Waterloo Road thirty-three (33’) feet to station 45+00 

@ 42” min. depth and overpass the existing east-west water main by a twenty-four (24”) inch 

minimum as shown on sheet “17 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

54. Thence southeasterly on the north side of Waterloo Road twelve (12’) feet to station 45+12 @ 

42” min. depth and overpass the existing north-south sanitary sewer by a twenty-four (24”) inch 

minimum as shown on sheet “17 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

55. Thence southeasterly on the north side of Waterloo Road nine (9’) feet to a proposed hand hole 

at station 45+21 also being station 140+15, 24’ Lt of the Waterloo Road alignment as shown on 

sheet “17 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

56. Thence southeasterly on the north side of Waterloo Road eighty-five (85’) feet to station 46+06 

@ 42” min. depth and underpass the existing east-west water main by a twenty-four (24”) inch 

minimum as shown on sheet “17 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

57. Thence southeasterly on the north side of Waterloo Road one (1’) feet to station 46+07 @ 42” 

min. depth and underpass the existing east-west water main by a twenty-four (24”) inch 

minimum as shown on sheet “17 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

58. Thence southeasterly on the north side of Waterloo Road seventy-five (75’) feet to station 

46+82 @ 42” min. depth and overpass the existing east-west water main by a twenty-four (24”) 

inch minimum as shown on sheet “19 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

59. Thence southeasterly on the north side of Waterloo Road and University Ave one-hundred and 

six (106’) feet to station 47+88 @ 42” min. depth and overpass the existing east-west water 

main by a twenty-four (24”) inch minimum as shown on sheet “19 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

60. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue ninety-five (95’) feet to station 

48+83 @ 48” min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “19 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

61. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue thirty-eight (38’) feet to station 

49+21 @ 48” min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “19 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

62. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue ninety-three (93’) feet to station 

50+14 @ 42” min. depth and underpass the existing east-west water main by a twenty-four 

(24”) inch minimum as shown on sheet “19 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

85

Item 12.



EXHIBIT A 
TEXT DESCRIPTION OF ALIGNMENT FOR CEDAR FALLS FIBER OPTIC CABLE INSTALLATION 

Page 5 of 9 
 

63. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue twenty-six (26’) feet to station 

50+40 @ 42” min. depth and underpass the existing north-south water main by a twenty-four 

(24”) inch minimum as shown on sheet “19 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

64. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue eleven (11’) feet to station 50+51 

@ 60” min. depth below McClain Drive as shown on sheet “19 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

65. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue one-hundred and thirteen (113’) 

feet to station 51+64 @ 48” min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “19 of 41” of said 

Exhibit B. 

66. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue ninety-four (94’) feet to station 

52+58 @ 42” min. depth and overpass the existing east-west water main by a twenty-four (24”) 

inch minimum as shown on sheet “21 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

67. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue twenty-one (21’) feet to station 

52+79 @ 42” min. depth and overpass the existing east-west water main by a twenty-four (24”) 

inch minimum as shown on sheet “21 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

68. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue twenty-six (26’) feet to station 

53+05 @ 48” min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “21 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

69. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue eighty-seven (87’) feet to station 

53+92 @ 42” min. depth and overpass the existing east-west water main by a twenty-four (24”) 

inch minimum as shown on sheet “21 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

70. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue one-hundred and thirty-eight 

(138’) feet to station 55+30 @ 42” min. depth and overpass the existing north-south storm 

sewer by a twenty-four (24”) inch minimum as shown on sheet “21 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

71. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue thirty-eight (38’) feet to station 

55+68 @ 42” min. depth and overpass the existing east-west water main by a twenty-four (24”) 

inch minimum as shown on sheet “21 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

72. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue ninety-five (95’) feet to station 

56+63 @ 48” min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “21 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

73. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue one-hundred and twenty-five 

(125’) feet to station 57+88 @ 42” min. depth and overpass the existing east-west water main 

by a twenty-four (24”) inch minimum as shown on sheet “23 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

74. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue thirty-two (32’) feet to station 

58+20 @ 42” min. depth and overpass the existing east-west water main by a twenty-four (24”) 

inch minimum as shown on sheet “23 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

75. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue fifty-two (52’) feet to station 58+72 

@ 48” min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “23 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

76. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue two-hundred and fourteen (214’) 

feet to station 60+86 @ 48” min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “23 of 41” of said 

Exhibit B. 

77. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue seventy (70’) feet to station 61+55 

@ 42” min. depth and overpass the existing east-west water main by a twenty-four (24”) inch 

minimum as shown on sheet “23 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

78. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue eighty-seven (87’) feet to station 

62+42 @ 42” min. depth and overpass the existing north-south water main by a twenty-four 

(24”) inch minimum as shown on sheet “25 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

86

Item 12.



EXHIBIT A 
TEXT DESCRIPTION OF ALIGNMENT FOR CEDAR FALLS FIBER OPTIC CABLE INSTALLATION 

Page 6 of 9 
 

79. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue two-hundred and thirty (230’) feet 

to station 64+72 @ 48” min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “25 of 41” of said 

Exhibit B. 

80. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue seventy-four (74’) feet to a 

proposed hand hole at station 65+46 also being station 1018+95, 20’ Lt of the University Avenue 

alignment as shown on sheet “25 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

81. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue eighty-three (83’) feet to station 

66+29 @ 60” min. depth below Rownd Street as shown on sheet “25 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

82. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue twenty-two (22’) feet to station 

66+51 @ 42” min. depth and overpass the existing north-south storm sewer by a twenty-four 

(24”) inch minimum as shown on sheet “25 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

83. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue eighty-five (85’) feet to station 

67+36 @ 42” min. depth and overpass the existing north-south water main by a twenty-four 

(24”) inch minimum as shown on sheet “25 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

84. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue fifty (50’) feet to station 67+86 @ 

48” min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “27 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

85. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue twenty-one (21’) feet to station 

68+07 @ 42” min. depth and underpass the existing east-west storm sewer by a twenty-four 

(24”) inch minimum as shown on sheet “27 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

86. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue twenty-five (25’) feet to station 

68+32 @ 48” min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “27 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

87. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue twenty-nine (29’) feet to station 

68+61 @ 42” min. depth and underpass the existing north-south water main by a twenty-four 

(24”) inch minimum as shown on sheet “27 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

88. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue eight (8’) feet to station 68+69 @ 

42” min. depth and underpass the existing north-south water main by a twenty-four (24”) inch 

minimum as shown on sheet “27 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

89. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue five (5’) feet to station 68+74 @ 

42” min. depth and underpass the existing north-south water main by a twenty-four (24”) inch 

minimum as shown on sheet “27 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

90. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue eighty-one (81’) feet to station 

69+55 @ 48” min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “27 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

91. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue eighty-eight (88’) feet to station 

70+43 @ 42” min. depth and overpass the existing north-south water main by a twenty-four 

(24”) inch minimum as shown on sheet “27 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

92. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue forty-five (45’) feet to station 

70+88 @ 48” min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “27 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

93. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue seventeen (17’) feet to station 

71+05 @ 42” min. depth and overpass the existing north-south water main by a twenty-four 

(24”) inch minimum as shown on sheet “27 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

94. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue one-hundred and thirty-six (136’) 

feet to station 72+41 @ 48” min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “27 of 41” of said 

Exhibit B. 

87

Item 12.



EXHIBIT A 
TEXT DESCRIPTION OF ALIGNMENT FOR CEDAR FALLS FIBER OPTIC CABLE INSTALLATION 

Page 7 of 9 
 

95. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue sixty-one (61’) feet to station 

73+02 @ 42” min. depth and overpass the existing north-south water main by a twenty-four 

(24”) inch minimum as shown on sheet “29 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

96. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue thirty-two (32’) feet to station 

73+34 @ 42” min. depth and overpass the existing north-south water main by a twenty-four 

(24”) inch minimum as shown on sheet “29 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

97. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue thirty-six (36’) feet to station 

73+70 @ 48” min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “29 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

98. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue eighty-four (84’) feet to station 

74+54 @ 48” min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “29 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

99. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue thirty-one (31’) feet to station 

74+85 @ 48” min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “29 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

100. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue twenty (20’) feet to station 75+05 

@ 42” min. depth and underpass the existing north-south water main by a twenty-four (24”) 

inch minimum as shown on sheet “29 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

101. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue fifty-six (56’) feet to station 75+61 

@ 42” min. depth and underpass the existing north-south storm sewer by a twenty-four (24”) 

inch minimum as shown on sheet “29 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

102. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue sixty-three (63’) feet to station 

76+24 @ 48” min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “29 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

103. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue twenty-one (21’) feet to station 

76+45 @ 42” min. depth and underpass the existing north-south water main by a twenty-four 

(24”) inch minimum as shown on sheet “29 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

104. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue nine (9’) feet to station 76+54 @ 

42” min. depth and underpass the existing north-south water main by a twenty-four (24”) inch 

minimum as shown on sheet “29 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

105. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue thirty-five (35’) feet to station 

76+89 @ 42” min. depth and underpass the existing north-south storm sewer by a twenty-four 

(24”) inch minimum as shown on sheet “29 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

106. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue thirty-five (35’) feet to station 

77+24 @ 48” min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “29 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

107. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue seventy-five (75’) feet to station 

77+99 @ 48” min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “29 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

108. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue fifteen (15’) feet to station 78+14 

@ 42” min. depth and underpass the existing north-south water main by a twenty-four (24”) 

inch minimum as shown on sheet “31 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

109. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue fifty (50’) feet to station 78+64 @ 

42” min. depth and underpass the existing north-south storm sewer by a twenty-four (24”) inch 

minimum as shown on sheet “31 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

110. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue thirty-four (34’) feet to station 

78+98 @ 42” min. depth and underpass the existing north-south water main by a twenty-four 

(24”) inch minimum as shown on sheet “31 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

88

Item 12.



EXHIBIT A 
TEXT DESCRIPTION OF ALIGNMENT FOR CEDAR FALLS FIBER OPTIC CABLE INSTALLATION 

Page 8 of 9 
 

111. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue thirty-eight (38’) feet to station 

79+36 @ 42” min. depth and underpass the existing north-south water main by a twenty-four 

(24”) inch minimum as shown on sheet “31 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

112. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue seven (7’) feet to station 79+43 @ 

42” min. depth and underpass the existing north-south storm sewer by a twenty-four (24”) inch 

minimum as shown on sheet “31 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

113. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue thirty-six (36’) feet to station 

79+79 @ 48” min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “31 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

114. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue twenty-two (22’) feet to station 

80+01 @ 42” min. depth and underpass the existing north-south storm sewer by a twenty-four 

(24”) inch minimum as shown on sheet “31 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

115. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue thirteen (13’) feet to station 

80+14 @ 42” min. depth and underpass the existing north-south water main by a twenty-four 

(24”) inch minimum as shown on sheet “31 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

116. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue one (1’) feet to station 80+15 @ 

48” min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “31 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

117. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue sixty-seven (67’) feet to station 

80+82 @ 42” min. depth and underpass the existing north-south water main by a twenty-four 

(24”) inch minimum as shown on sheet “31 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

118. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue sixty-six (66’) feet to station 

81+48 @ 42” min. depth and underpass the existing north-south storm sewer by a twenty-four 

(24”) inch minimum as shown on sheet “31 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

119. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue forty (40’) feet to station 81+88 @ 

48” min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “31 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

120. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue twenty-four (24’) feet to station 

82+12 @ 42” min. depth and underpass the existing north-south storm sewer by a twenty-four 

(24”) inch minimum as shown on sheet “31 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

121. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue one hundred (100’) feet to station 

83+12 @ 42” min. depth and overpass the existing north-south water main by a twenty-four 

(24”) inch minimum as shown on sheet “33 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

122. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue eight (8’) feet to station 83+20 @ 

48” min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “33 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

123. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue thirty (30’) feet to station 83+50 

@ 42” min. depth and underpass the existing north-south storm sewer by a twenty-four (24”) 

inch minimum as shown on sheet “33 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

124. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue two-hundred and two (202’) feet 

to station 85+52 @ 48” min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “33 of 41” of said 

Exhibit B. 

125. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue twenty-four (24’) feet to station 

85+76 @ 42” min. depth and underpass the existing north-south storm sewer by a twenty-four 

(24”) inch minimum as shown on sheet “33 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

126. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue one-hundred and eighty-two 

(182’) feet to station 87+58 @ 42” min. depth and overpass the existing north-south water 

main by a twenty-four (24”) inch minimum as shown on sheet “33 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

89

Item 12.



EXHIBIT A 
TEXT DESCRIPTION OF ALIGNMENT FOR CEDAR FALLS FIBER OPTIC CABLE INSTALLATION 

Page 9 of 9 
 

127. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue one-hundred and forty-one (141’) 

feet to station 88+99 @ 42” min. depth and underpass the existing north-south storm sewer by 

a twenty-four (24”) inch minimum as shown on sheet “35 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

128. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue two hundred (200’) feet to station 

90+99 @ 48” min. depth below private drive as shown on sheet “35 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

129. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue one-hundred and ninety-nine 

(199’) feet to station 92+98 @ 42” min. depth and overpass the existing east-west water main 

by a twenty-four (24”) inch minimum as shown on sheet “35 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

130. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue thirty-two (32’) feet to station 

93+30 @ 42” min. depth and overpass the existing east-west water main by a twenty-four (24”) 

inch minimum as shown on sheet “35 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

131. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue one hundred (100’) feet to station 

94+30 @ 42” min. depth and underpass the existing east-west water main by a twenty-four 

(24”) inch minimum as shown on sheet “35 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

132. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue eleven (11’) feet to station 94+41 

@ 42” min. depth and underpass the existing north-south storm sewer by a twenty-four (24”) 

inch minimum as shown on sheet “35 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

133. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue fourteen (14’) feet to station 

94+55 @ 42” min. depth and underpass the existing north-south water main by a twenty-four 

(24”) inch minimum as shown on sheet “37 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

134. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue one-hundred and two (102’) feet 

to station 95+43 @ 60” min. depth below Cedar Heights Drive as shown on sheet “37 of 41” of 

said Exhibit B. 

135. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue fifty (50’) feet to station 95+93 @ 

48” min. depth and underpass the existing north-south storm sewer as shown on sheet “37 of 

41” of said Exhibit B. 

136. Thence southeasterly on the north side of University Avenue forty-five (45’) feet to an existing 

hand hole at station 96+38 also being station 1049+70, 39’ Lt of the University Avenue 

alignment as shown on sheet “37 of 41” of said Exhibit B. 

90

Item 12.



1+00
5+00

10
+0

0

15
+0

0

20
+0

0

25
+0

0

30
+0

0

35
+0

0

40
+0

0

45
+0

0

50
+0

0

55
+0

0

60
+0

0

65
+0

0

70
+0

0

75
+0

0

80
+0

0

85
+0

0

90
+0

0

95+00 96
+3

8

EXHIBIT B

C
IV

IL
 D

ES
IG

N
 A

D
VA

N
TA

G
E

A
U

R
EO

N
 - 

C
ED

A
R

 F
A

LL
S

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

D
AT

E

C
ED

AR
 F

AL
LS

, I
O

W
A

FI
R

ST
 S

U
BM

IT
TA

L
07

/2
0/

20
21

PH
O

N
E:

 (5
15

) 3
69

-4
40

0

41
21

 N
W

 U
R

BA
N

D
AL

E 
D

R
IV

E
U

R
BA

N
D

AL
E,

 IA
 5

03
22

2106.523

05/11/2022
DATE:

SHEET NUMBER:

SE
C

O
N

D
 S

U
BM

IT
TA

L
05

/1
1/

20
22

TH
IR

D
 S

U
BM

IT
TA

L
06

/2
1/

20
22

2/41

SHEETS 3 & 4

SHEETS 5 & 6
SHEETS 7 & 8

SHEETS 9 & 10
SHEETS 11 & 12

SHEETS 13 & 14

SHEETS 15 & 16

SHEET S 17 & 18

SHEETS 19 & 20

SHEETS 21 & 22

SHEETS 23 & 24

SHEETS 25 & 26

SHEETS 27 & 28

SHEETS 29 & 30

SHEETS 31 & 32

SHEETS 33 & 34

SHEETS 35 & 36

SHEETS 37 & 38

WATERLOO RD

UNIVERSITY AVE / HWY 934

E 18TH STREET

LENGTH OF UTILITY, IN CEDAR FALLS CITY RIGHT OF WAY
BEGINNING @ EXISTING AUREON HH @ SOUTHWEST CORNER OF EAST STREET & E 18TH STREET, EAST  IN SOUTH ROW TO PROPOSED HANDHOLE & BORE PIT.

ENDING STA AND OFFSET                          BEGINNING STA AND OFFSET DISTANCE L.F.
19+37 37' RT- HH & BP (102+03 43' RT) 14+04 37' RT(E 18TH ST. ALIGN) 533

467

 TOTAL L.F. OF 2" ORANGE CONDUIT IN CITY OF CEDAR FALLS RIGHT-OF-WAY

BEGIN PROPOSED AUREON 2" HDPE
CONDUIT W/96CT FIBER OPTIC

END PROPOSED AUREON 2" HDPE
CONDUIT W/96CT FIBER OPTIC

FROM PROPOSED AUREON HH @ SOUTHWEST CORNER OF E 18TH STREET & WATERLOO RD., SOUTHEAST IN WEST ROW OF WATERLOO RD, CROSSING VALLEY PARK DR TO REC.  PIT. 19+37 37' RT- HH & BP (102+03 43' RT)106+70 35' RT (WATERLOO RD ALIGN)

106+70 35' RT (WATERLOO RD ALIGN)FROM REC.  PIT. IN WEST ROW OF WATERLOO RD, SOUTHEAST TO BORE PIT. 111+70 40.5' RT (WATERLOO RD ALIGN) 500
111+70 40.5' RT (WATERLOO RD ALIGN)FROM BORE  PIT. IN WEST ROW OF WATERLOO RD, SOUTHEAST CROSSING MADISON STREET TO RECEIVING PIT IN WEST ROW OF WATERLOO RD. 116+25 37' RT (WATERLOO RD ALIGN) 455

FROM RECEIVING PIT IN WEST ROW OF WATERLOO RD. SOUTHEAST TO BORE PIT IN WEST ROW OF WATERLOO RD. 120+75 37' RT (WATERLOO RD ALIGN) 116+25 37' RT (WATERLOO RD ALIGN) 450
125+75 37' RT (WATERLOO RD ALIGN) 120+75 37' RT (WATERLOO RD ALIGN)FROM BORE PIT IN WEST ROW OF WATERLOO RD. SOUTHEAST CROSSING ROYAL DR TO RECEIVING PIT IN WEST ROW OF WATERLOO RD. 500

FROM RECEIVING PIT IN WEST ROW OF WATERLOO RD., SOUTHEAST TO BORE PIT IN WEST ROW OF WATERLOO RD. 130+75 37' RT (WATERLOO RD ALIGN) 500125+75 37' RT (WATERLOO RD ALIGN)

132+43 36' RT (WATERLOO RD ALIGN) 130+75 37' RT (WATERLOO RD ALIGN)FROM BORE PIT IN WEST ROW OF WATERLOO RD. SOUTHEAST TO RECEIVING PIT & HAND-HOLE IN WEST ROW OF WATERLOO RD. 168

FROM RECEIVING PIT & HAND-HOLE IN WEST ROW OF WATERLOO RD., NORTHEAST CROSSING WATERLOO RD. TO A BORE PIT IN THE EAST ROW OF WATERLOO RD. 132+43 36' RT (WATERLOO RD ALIGN) 78.5132+43 42.5' LT (WATERLOO RD ALIGN)

137+25 39' LT (WATERLOO RD ALIGN) 132+43 42.5' LT (WATERLOO RD ALIGN)FROM BORE PIT IN THE EAST ROW OF WATERLOO RD., SOUTHEAST TO A RECEIVING PIT IN THE EAST ROW OF WATERLOO RD. 482

FROM RECEIVING PIT IN THE EAST ROW OF WATERLOO RD., SOUTHEAST CROSSING VICTORY DRIVE TO A BORE PIT & HAND-HOLE IN THE EAST ROW OF WATERLOO RD. 140+15 24' LT (WATERLOO RD ALIGN) 137+25 39' LT (WATERLOO RD ALIGN) 290
1003+05 31' LT (UNIVERSITY AVE ALIGN) 140+15 24' LT (WATERLOO RD ALIGN)FROM BORE PIT & HAND-HOLE IN THE EAST ROW OF WATERLOO RD., SOUTHEAST  EXITING WATERLOO RD. ROW TO A RECEIVING PIT IN EAST ROW OF UNIVERSITY AVE

FROM RECEIVING PIT IN EAST ROW OF UNIVERSITY AVE, SOUTHEAST CROSSING MCCLAIN DRIVE TO A BORE PIT IN THE EAST ROW OF UNIVERSITY AVE

428

1008+00 21' LT (UNIVERSITY AVE ALIGN) 1003+05 31' LT (UNIVERSITY AVE ALIGN) 495

FROM BORE PIT IN THE EAST ROW OF UNIVERSITY AVE, SOUTHEAST TO A RECEIVING PIT IN THE EAST ROW OF UNIVERSITY AVE 1013+00 20' LT (UNIVERSITY AVE ALIGN) 5001008+00 21' LT (UNIVERSITY AVE ALIGN)

FROM RECEIVING PIT IN THE EAST ROW OF UNIVERSITY AVE, SOUTHEAST TO A HAND-HOLE AND BORE PIT WEST OF ROWND STREET 1018+95 21' LT (UNIVERSITY AVE ALIGN) 1013+00 20' LT (UNIVERSITY AVE ALIGN) 595

FROM HAND-HOLE AND BORE PIT IN EAST ROW OF UNIVERSITY AVE, SOUTHEAST CROSSING ROWND ST. TO A RECEIVING PIT IN THE EAST ROW OF UNIVERSITY AVE 1023+50 20' LT (UNIVERSITY AVE ALIGN) 4551018+95 20' LT (UNIVERSITY AVE ALIGN)

FROM RECEIVING PIT IN THE EAST ROW OF UNIVERSITY AVE, SOUTHEAST TO A BORE PIT IN THE EAST ROW OF UNIVERSITY AVE 1027+75 19' LT (UNIVERSITY AVE ALIGN) 4251023+50 20' LT (UNIVERSITY AVE ALIGN)

FROM BORE PIT IN THE EAST ROW OF UNIVERSITY AVE, SOUTHEAST TO A RECEIVING PIT IN THE EAST ROW OF UNIVERSITY AVE 1032+75 19' LT (UNIVERSITY AVE ALIGN) 5001027+75 19' LT (UNIVERSITY AVE ALIGN)

FROM RECEIVING PIT IN THE EAST ROW OF UNIVERSITY AVE, SOUTHEAST TO A BORE PIT IN THE EAST ROW OF UNIVERSITY AVE 1037+75 19' LT (UNIVERSITY AVE ALIGN) 5001032+75 19' LT (UNIVERSITY AVE ALIGN)

FROM BORE PIT IN THE EAST ROW OF UNIVERSITY AVE, SOUTHEAST TO A RECEIVING PIT IN THE EAST ROW OF UNIVERSITY AVE 1042+75 19' LT (UNIVERSITY AVE ALIGN) 5001037+75 19' LT (UNIVERSITY AVE ALIGN)

FROM RECEIVING PIT IN THE EAST ROW OF UNIVERSITY AVE, SOUTHEAST TO A BORE PIT IN THE EAST ROW OF UNIVERSITY AVE 1046+00 19' LT (UNIVERSITY AVE ALIGN) 3251042+75 19' LT (UNIVERSITY AVE ALIGN)

FROM BORE PIT IN THE EAST ROW OF UNIVERSITY AVE, SOUTHEAST CROSSING CEDAR HEIGHTS DRIVE TO A RECEIVING PIT IN THE EAST ROW 1049+10 35.5' LT (UNIVERSITY AVE ALIGN) 3101046+00 19' LT (UNIVERSITY AVE ALIGN)

FROM RECEIVING PIT IN THE EAST ROW CEDAR HEIGHTS DRIVE-UNIVERSITY AVE,SOUTHEAST TO A BORE PIT IN EAST ROW OF UNIVERSITY AVE
1049+45 21' LT (UNIVERSITY AVE ALIGN) 1049+10 35.5' LT (UNIVERSITY AVE ALIGN)

53

FROM BORE PIT IN EAST ROW OF UNIVERSITY AVE, SOUTHEAST IN EAST ROW OF UNIVERSITY AVE TO EXISTING AUREON HAND-HOLE & END OF FIBER ROUTE

0+03 21' RT (CEDAR HEIGHTS DR. ALIGN) 0+56 14.5' RT (CEDAR HEIGHTS DR. ALIGN)
1049+45 21' LT (UNIVERSITY AVE ALIGN)
0+03 21' RT (CEDAR HEIGHTS DR. ALIGN) 251049+70 39' LT (UNIVERSITY AVE ALIGN)

9534.5 L.F.

SHEET LAYOUT

1000+00 (UNIVERSITY AVE ALIGN)=
142+05 (WATERLOO RD ALIGN)

91

Item 12.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 
 DATE: September 22, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: Highway 58 & Ridgeway Avenue Reconstruction 
  Preconstruction Agreement #: 2023-6-012 
  DOT Project: NHSX-027-7(3)—2H-07         
  City Project: RC-294-3250 
 
On December 3rd, 2018 the City entered into a developmental agreement with VEREIT 
Real Estate (Mills Fleet Farm) for the development in the southwest corner of Highway 
58 and Ridgeway Avenue.  
 
As part of the agreement, public improvements were necessary to accommodate for the 
future traffic volumes of the development. At this time, the City was coordinating with 
the Iowa Department of Transportation on planned improvements for Highway 58 from 
Ridgeway Avenue south to Highway 20.    
 
In 2019 the City had completed the first of two phases of improvements along Ridgeway 
Avenue. Phase 2 improvements as outlined in the agreement with VEREIT would 
include the area from Nordic Drive east to Highway 58. The attached preconstruction 
agreement is for the improvements needed at Hwy 58 and Ridgeway Avenue including 
upgrading the pavement and traffic signal. Additionally, this will include the widening of 
Ridgeway Avenue west to Nordic Drive, including a traffic signal at Nordic Drive. 
 
The preconstruction agreement identifies the construction funding participation of the 
City and the State.  Attached is the proposed agreement, indicating the estimated 
construction costs as shown below.   

 City of Cedar Falls - $2,048,419.86 

 Iowa Department of Transportation - $7,217,709.58 
 
The Iowa Department of Transportation will be the lead on this project and all work will 
fulfill our agreement with VEREIT Real Estate(attached Exhibit B). The construction for 
the project will take place during 2023 and 2024. Funds for this project are identified in 
the Cedar Falls Capital Improvements Program in FY22-FY24 under item number 133. 
 

92

Item 13.



 
The Public Works department has reviewed this agreement.  Staff recommends that the 
City Council approve and execute the attached Iowa Department of Transportation 
Preconstruction Agreement for the construction of Iowa Highway 58/Ridgeway Ave. 
 
Please feel free to contact me with questions or for additional information. 
 
Xc: David Wicke, PE, City Engineer 
   

93

Item 13.



July 2014 
 

2023-6-012_CedarFalls.docx 1 

IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
Preconstruction Agreement 
For Primary Road Project 

 
County  Black Hawk 
City Cedar Falls 
Project No.  NHSX-027-7(3)--3H-07 
Iowa DOT  
Agreement No.  2023-6-012 
Staff Action No.  

 
This Agreement, is entered into by and between the Iowa Department of Transportation, hereinafter 
designated the "DOT", and Cedar Falls, Iowa, a Local Public Agency, hereafter designated the "LPA" in 
accordance with Iowa Code Chapters 28E, 306, 306A and 313.4 as applicable; 
 
The DOT proposes to establish or make improvements to Iowa 27 (Iowa 58) within Black Hawk County, 
Iowa; and 
 
The DOT and the LPA are willing to jointly participate in said project, in the manner hereinafter provided; 
and 
 
The DOT and the LPA previously entered into the following agreement(s) for the above referenced project: 
Agreement No. 2020-P-126 for predesign was executed by the DOT and LPA on October 23, 2020, and 
October 6, 2020, respectively; and  
 
This Agreement reflects the current concept of this project which is subject to modification by mutual 
agreement between the LPA and the DOT; and 
 
Therefore, it is agreed as follows: 
 
1. Project Information 
 
a. The DOT will design, let, and inspect construction of the following described project in accordance 

with the project plans and DOT standard specifications: 
 

i. Portland Cement Concrete (PCC) pavement replacement of Iowa 27 (Iowa 58) from U.S. 20 to 
Ridgeway Avenue in Cedar Falls.  The project will include the replacement of a reinforced box 
culvert (RCB) under Ridgeway Avenue.  
 

 
b. All storm sewers constructed by the DOT as part of the project will become the property of the LPA, 

which will be responsible for their maintenance and operations. The LPA will not make any 
connections to said storm sewers without the prior written approval of the DOT. The LPA will prevent 
use of such storm sewers as a sanitary sewer.  

 
c. Upon completion of construction, the LPA agrees to accept ownership and jurisdiction of the following 

referenced improvements. The LPA shall also assume responsibility for all future maintenance 
operations associated therewith, all at no additional expense or obligation to the DOT:  

 
i. Ridgeway Avenue will be reconstructed from Nordic Drive to 600 feet east of Iowa 27. A variable 

width paved roadway with curb and gutter units will be constructed. Also, raised medians with left-
turn bays will be provided at the intersection with Iowa 27. 
 

94

Item 13.



July 2014 
 

2023-6-012_CedarFalls.docx 2 

 
 

 
2. Project Costs 
 
a. The LPA shall reimburse the DOT for its share of the project costs estimated at $1,854,533.33 

(roadway) and $193,886.52 (RCB), as shown in Exhibit B. LPA reimbursement will be made in three 
(3) equal yearly installments of approximately $682,806.62, each. The first installment will be due 
upon completion of construction and proper billing by the DOT. The final two installments will be billed 
to the LPA one and two years subsequent to the date of the first billing respectively. The actual 
amount of reimbursement will be determined by the quantities in place and the accepted bid at the 
contract letting.  
 

b. The DOT will bear all costs except those allocated to the LPA under other terms of this Agreement. 
 
3. Traffic Control 

 
a. Iowa 27 through-traffic will be maintained during the construction.  

 
b. If it becomes necessary to temporarily close LPA side roads during construction, the DOT will furnish 

and install the required barricades and signing for the closure at project cost and shall remove same 
upon completion of the project also at no expense or obligation to the LPA. The DOT will work in 
close cooperation with the LPA and the contractor to accommodate emergency services and local 
access across the project during construction. Any detours which may be necessary for project 
related LPA road closures will be the responsibility of the LPA all at no expense or obligation to the 
DOT.  

 
c. If this project causes the temporary closure of a road during construction, the DOT shall meet with the 

LPA to determine whether said closure(s) will cause increased traffic on other LPA roads. The DOT 
and the LPA shall determine a plan, and the costs thereof, for the LPA to perform dust control on said 
LPA roads with increased traffic, should dust control become necessary. In that event, the LPA shall 
inform the DOT prior to performing said dust control. The DOT shall reimburse the LPA for the cost of 
said dust control measures following the receipt of a bill for the agreed upon costs (see Iowa Code 
section 313.4 subsection 1.b.).  

 
4. Right of Way and Permits 

 
a. Subject to the provisions hereof, the LPA in accordance with 761 Iowa Administrative Code Chapter 

150.3(1)c and 150.4(2) will remove or cause to be removed (within the corporate limits) all 
encroachments or obstructions in the existing primary highway right of way. The LPA will also prevent 
the erection and/or placement of any structure or obstruction on said right of way or any additional 
right of way which is acquired for this project including but not limited to private signs, buildings, 
pumps, and parking areas.  
 

b. The DOT will be responsible for the coordination of utility facility adjustments for the primary road 
project.  

 
c. The LPA agrees to relocate all city-owned utilities necessary for construction which are located within 

the existing street or alley right of way, subject to the approval of and without expense to the DOT 
and in accordance with 761 Iowa Administrative Code Chapter 150.4(5) and the DOT Utility 
Accommodation Policy.  

 
d. With the exception of service connections no new or future utility occupancy of project right of way, 

95

Item 13.



July 2014 
 

2023-6-012_CedarFalls.docx 3 

nor any future relocations of or alterations to existing utilities within said right of way will be permitted 
or undertaken by the LPA without the prior written approval of the DOT. All work will be performed in 
accordance with the Utility Accommodation Policy and other applicable requirements of the DOT. 

 
e. The LPA shall be responsible for providing, without cost to the DOT, any right of way for the project 

which involves dedicated streets or alleys, and any other LPA-owned lands which are required for the 
project, subject to the condition that the DOT shall reimburse the LPA for the value of LPA-owned 
improvements situated on such other LPA-owned lands. The LPA has apprised itself of the value of 
these lands, and as a portion of their participation in the project, voluntarily agrees to make such 
lands available without further compensation. The DOT shall be responsible for acquisition of all other 
right of way.  

 
f. In connection with this project any real estate and rights to real estate necessary for right of way at 

the connection of any public road and a primary highway project, any access road or frontage road, or 
any permanent utility easements which are or which will be under the jurisdiction of the LPA may be 
acquired by the DOT, for and in the name of the LPA. Where acquired by contract the LPA will 
receive title from the contract seller and the LPA will accept title thereto. Where acquired by 
condemnation, a single joint condemnation proceeding will be instituted by the DOT to acquire real 
estate or rights in real estate needed by the LPA for the LPA and to acquire real estate or rights in 
real estate needed by the DOT for the DOT.  

 
5. Construction & Maintenance 

 
a. Upon completion of the project, no changes in the physical features thereof will be undertaken or 

permitted without the prior written approval of the DOT. 
 
b. Future maintenance of the primary highway within the project area will be carried out in accordance 

with the terms and conditions contained in 761 Iowa Administrative Code Chapter 150.  
 
c. New lighting and/or traffic signal construction for this project shall be provided under guidelines 

established in 761 Iowa Administrative Code Chapter 150. The DOT shall construct traffic signal 
installations all at no cost to the LPA. Lighting installations will not be constructed as part of the 
project unless specifically requested by the LPA. Lighting which is requested by the LPA will also be 
paid for entirely by the LPA at no cost to the DOT or project. If constructed, the LPA shall accept 
ownership of and responsibility for future energy and maintenance costs of those lighting and/or traffic 
signal units which lie within the corporate boundaries.  

 
d. Structures built by the DOT over or under a primary road will be maintained structurally sound by the 

DOT, including repairs to floors and railing and painting. For structures serving roadways which are 
not on the primary road system, the cleaning and removal of snow, debris and foreign objects from 
local road traffic lanes, sidewalks or walkways within the project limits (if any) including pedestrian 
overpasses or underpasses will be the responsibility of the LPA.  

 
6. General Provisions 

 
a. If the LPA has completed a Flood Insurance Study (FIS) for an area which is affected by the 

proposed Primary Highway project and the FIS is modified, amended or revised in an area affected 
by the project after the date of this Agreement, the LPA shall promptly provide notice of the 
modification, amendment or revision to the DOT. If the LPA does not have a detailed Flood Insurance 
Study (FIS) for an area which is affected by the proposed Primary Highway project and the LPA does 
adopt an FIS in an area affected by the project after the date of this Agreement, the LPA shall 
promptly provide notice of the FIS to the DOT. 

 

96

Item 13.



July 2014 
 

2023-6-012_CedarFalls.docx 4 

b. The LPA will comply with all provisions of the equal employment opportunity requirements prohibiting 
discrimination and requiring affirmative action to assure equal employment opportunity as required by 
Iowa Code Chapter 216. No person will, on the grounds of age, race, creed, color, sex, sexual 
orientation, gender identity, national origin, religion, pregnancy, or disability, be excluded from 
participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any 
program or activity for which State funds are used.  
 

c. It is the intent of both (all) parties that no third party beneficiaries be created by this Agreement. 
 

d. If any section, provision, or part of this Agreement shall be found to be invalid or unconstitutional, 
such finding shall not affect the validity of the Agreement as a whole or any section, provision, or part 
thereof not found to be invalid or unconstitutional, except to the extent that the original intent of the 
Agreement cannot be fulfilled. 

 
e. This Agreement may be executed in (two) counterparts, each of which so executed will be deemed to 

be an original. 
 
f. This Agreement, as well as the unaffected provisions of any previous agreement(s), addendum(s), 

and/or amendment(s); represents the entire Agreement between the LPA and DOT regarding this 
project. All previously executed agreements will remain in effect except as amended herein. Any 
subsequent change or modification to the terms of this Agreement will be in the form of a duly 
executed amendment to this document. 

 
  

97

Item 13.



July 2014 
 

2023-6-012_CedarFalls.docx 5 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties hereto has executed Agreement No. 2023-6-012 as of the 
date shown opposite its signature below. 
 
 
 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS:  
 
 
 
By:                                                                     Date                                                      , 20___. 
Title:    Mayor 
 
I,                                                                        , certify that I am the Clerk of the City, and that 

                                                                                    , who signed  said  Agreement for and on behalf of 

the City was duly authorized to  execute the same on the          day of                                      , 20___. 

 
Signed: _____________________________ 
    City Clerk of Cedar Falls, Iowa 

IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION: 
 
 
 
By:                                                               Date                                                         , 20___. 
      E. Jon Ranney P.E./P.L.S. 
      District Engineer 
      District 2 
 
 
 

98

Item 13.



N

LEGEND

IOWA DOT

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

CITY OF HUDSON

2
0

C
P
2

8
0
0
2

3
0
0
8

3
0
3
4

3
0
3
5

4
0
0
9

4
0
19

4
0
2
0

4
0
2
1

4
0
2
2

4
0
2
3

4
0
2
4

4
0
2
7

4
0
2
6

4
0
2
5

4
0
4
3

4
0
5
7

4
0
5
8

4
0
5
9

4
0
6
0

4
0
6
1

N

LEGEND

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

CITY OF HUDSON

2
0

58 / 27 RECONSTRUCTIONIA 

Project Number:  NHSX-027-7(3)--3H-07

JULY 2022

58

58

58

58

BUTTERFIE
LD R

OAD R
ID

G
E

W
A

Y
 A

V
E

N
U

E

R
ID

E
R
 R

O
A

D

R
A

M
P
 B

R
A

M
P
 D

R
A

M
P
 A

R
A

M
P
 C

R
ID

G
E

W
A

Y
 A

V
E

N
U

E

(C
IT

Y
 O

F
 H

U
D

S
O

N
)

ACE PLACE

S
H

A
W

N
E

E
 R

O
A

D

NORDIC DRIVE

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
E
 D

R
IV

E

IO
W

A
 D

O
T

D
E

S
. N

O
. 1

2
2

1
2
' x
 6
' R

C
B

C
E

D
A

R
 F

A
L

L
S

C
IT

Y
 O

F

D
E

S
. N

O
. 2

2
2

1
0
' x
 6
' R

C
B

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
 D

R
IV

E

(C
IT

Y
 O

F
 C

E
D

A
R
 F

A
L

L
S
)

O 200O 200

FEET

EXHIBIT A

2023-6-012_CedarFalls 99

Item 13.



 Item Number  Item Description Units Quantity Unit Cost Line Total

Cedar Falls Total: $1,854,533.33

 2102-2710070  EXCAVATION, CL 10, RDWY+BORROW  CY 8,500.000 $7.00 $59,500.00

 2105-8425015  TOPSOIL, STRIP, SALVAGE+SPREAD  CY 500.000 $10.00 $5,000.00

 2115-0100000  MODIFIED SUBBASE  CY 4,070.000 $42.00 $170,940.00

 2301-1033090  STD/S-F PCC PAV'T, CL C CL 3, 9"  SY 10,810.000 $50.00 $540,500.00

 2301-4875006  MEDIAN, PCC, 6"  SY 455.000 $85.00 $38,675.00

 2435-0140148  MANHOLE, STORM SWR, SW-401, 48"  EA 1.000 $4,000.00 $4,000.00

 2435-0250700  INTAKE, SW-507  EA 5.000 $6,000.00 $30,000.00

 2435-0250900  INTAKE, SW-509  EA 9.000 $7,500.00 $67,500.00

 2435-0254500  INTAKE, SW-545  EA 2.000 $7,200.00 $14,400.00

 2502-8212034  SUBDRAIN, LONGITUDINAL, (SHLD) 4"  LF 2,100.000 $7.00 $14,700.00

 2503-0110015  STORM SWR GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, 15"  LF 1,000.000 $60.00 $60,000.00

 2503-0110018  STORM SWR GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, 18"  LF 41.000 $65.00 $2,665.00

 2503-0110024  STORM SWR GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, 24"  LF 110.000 $110.00 $12,100.00

 2510-6745850  RMVL OF PAV'T  SY 8,300.000 $10.00 $83,000.00

 2511-6745900  RMVL OF SIDEWALK  SY 700.000 $10.00 $7,000.00

 2511-7526006  SIDEWALK, PCC, 6"  SY 1,130.000 $70.00 $79,100.00

 2523-0000100  LIGHTING POLE  EA 20.000 $5,000.00 $100,000.00

 2528-8445110  TRAFFIC CONTROL  LS 1.000 $100,000.00 $100,000.00

 2533-4980005  MOBILIZATION  LS 1.000 $100,000.00 $100,000.00

 2599-9999005  TRAFFIC SIGNALS&nbsp;  EA 1.000 $200,000.00 $200,000.00

 PCT-000  GENERAL  (000)  % of Project 1,654,533.330 10.00% $165,453.33

 Item Number  Item Description Units Quantity Unit Cost Line Total

Iowa DOT Total: $6,853,272.22

 2102-2710070  EXCAVATION, CL 10, RDWY+BORROW  CY 55,000.000 $7.00 $385,000.00

 2105-8425015  TOPSOIL, STRIP, SALVAGE+SPREAD  CY 9,500.000 $10.00 $95,000.00

 2115-0100000  MODIFIED SUBBASE  CY 20,410.000 $42.00 $857,220.00

 2121-7425010  GRANULAR SHLD, TYPE A  TON 375.000 $55.00 $20,625.00

 2122-5190105  PAVED SHLD, PCC, 10.5"  SY 16,300.000 $50.00 $815,000.00

 2301-1033105  STD/S-F PCC PAV'T, CL C CL 3, 10.5"  SY 37,290.000 $50.00 $1,864,500.00

 2301-4875006  MEDIAN, PCC, 6"  SY 3,310.000 $85.00 $281,350.00

 2435-0250700  INTAKE, SW-507  EA 6.000 $6,000.00 $36,000.00

 2435-0254100  INTAKE, SW-541  EA 3.000 $6,000.00 $18,000.00

 2502-8212034  SUBDRAIN, LONGITUDINAL, (SHLD) 4"  LF 15,600.000 $7.00 $109,200.00

 2502-8221303  SUBDRAIN OUTLET, DR-303  EA 22.000 $300.00 $6,600.00

 2503-0110015  STORM SWR GRAVITY MAIN, TRENCHED, 15"  LF 600.000 $60.00 $36,000.00

 2505-4008410  STEEL BEAM G'RAIL BAR TRANS SECT, BA-201  EA 4.000 $2,400.00 $9,600.00

 2505-4021720  STEEL BEAM G'RAIL TGNT END TERM, BA-205  EA 4.000 $2,800.00 $11,200.00

 2510-6745850  RMVL OF PAV'T  SY 51,700.000 $10.00 $517,000.00

 2511-6745900  RMVL OF SIDEWALK  SY 85.000 $10.00 $850.00

 2513-0001020  CONC BARRIER, BA-102  LF 2,200.000 $100.00 $220,000.00

 2528-8445110  TRAFFIC CONTROL  LS 1.000 $186,000.00 $186,000.00

 2533-4980005  MOBILIZATION  LS 1.000 $186,000.00 $186,000.00

 2599-9999005  TRAFFIC SIGNALS (EB RAMPS AND RIDGEWAY AVE.)  EA 2.000 $250,000.00 $500,000.00

 2599-9999010  TYPE 'B' SIGNING&nbsp;  LS 1.000 $50,000.00 $50,000.00

 PCT-000  GENERAL  (000)  % of Project 6,481,272.220 10.00% $648,127.22

 Item Number  Item Description Units Quantity Unit Cost Line Total

Hudson Total: $174,877.78

 2115-0100000  MODIFIED SUBBASE  CY 680.000 $42.00 $28,560.00

 2121-7425010  GRANULAR SHLD, TYPE A  TON 250.000 $55.00 $13,750.00

 2301-1033105  STD/S-F PCC PAV'T, CL C CL 3, 10.5"  SY 1,800.000 $50.00 $90,000.00

 2502-8212034  SUBDRAIN, LONGITUDINAL, (SHLD) 4"  LF 840.000 $7.00 $5,880.00

 2502-8221303  SUBDRAIN OUTLET, DR-303  EA 4.000 $300.00 $1,200.00

 2510-6745850  RMVL OF PAV'T  SY 1,800.000 $10.00 $18,000.00

 PCT-000  GENERAL  (000)  % of Project 174,877.780 10.00% $17,487.78

Project Total: $8,882,683.33

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

IOWA DOT

CITY OF HUDSON

ROADWAY COST ESTIMATE
Black Hawk County IA 27(IA58) from US 20 to Ridgeway Avenue

NHSX-027-7(3)--3H-07

EXHIBIT B

2023-6-012_Cedar Falls
100

Item 13.



 Item Number  Item Description Units Quantity Unit Cost Line Total

Iowa DOT Share: $18,708.35

Cedar Falls Share: $193,886.52

Ridgeway Ave. RCB Total: $212,594.87

 2104-2710020  EXCAVATION, CL 10, CHANNEL  CY 140.000 $10.00 $1,400.00

 2402-2720000  EXCAVATION, CL 20  CY 1,000.000 $22.00 $22,000.00

 2403-0100020  STRUCT CONC (RCB CULV)  CY 130.000 $600.00 $78,000.00

 2404-7775000  REINFORC STEEL  LB 22,900.000 $1.40 $32,060.00

 2501-8400172  TEMP SHORING  LS 1.000 $20,000.00 $20,000.00

 2507-3250005  ENGINEER FABRIC  SY 270.000 $3.00 $810.00

 2507-6800061  REVETMENT, CLASS E  TON 380.000 $50.00 $19,000.00

 2599-9999010  CULVERT REMOVAL  LS 1.000 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

 2599-9999020  STAGING  LS 1.000 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

 2533-4980005  MOBILIZATION  % of Project 212,594.870 9.09% $19,324.87

 Item Number  Item Description Units Quantity Unit Cost Line Total

Iowa DOT Total: $364,437.36

 2104-2710020  EXCAVATION, CL 10, CHANNEL  CY 200.000 $10.00 $2,000.00

 2402-2720000  EXCAVATION, CL 20  CY 1,400.000 $22.00 $30,800.00

 2403-0100020  STRUCT CONC (RCB CULV)  CY 236.000 $600.00 $141,600.00

 2404-7775000  REINFORC STEEL  LB 45,700.000 $1.40 $63,980.00

 2501-8400172  TEMP SHORING  LS 1.000 $50,000.00 $50,000.00

 2507-3250005  ENGINEER FABRIC  SY 310.000 $3.00 $930.00

 2507-6800061  REVETMENT, CLASS E  TON 440.000 $50.00 $22,000.00

 2599-9999010  CULVERT REMOVAL  LS 1.000 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

 2599-9999020  STAGING  LS 1.000 $10,000.00 $10,000.00

 2533-4980005  MOBILIZATION  % of Project 364,437.360 9.09% $33,127.36

Project Total: $577,032.23

RCB COST ESTIMATE
Black Hawk County IA 27(IA58) from US 20 to Ridgeway Avenue (Culverts)

NHSX-027-7(6)--3H-07

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS (91.2%)

IOWA DOT

IOWA DOT (8.8%)

EXHIBIT B

2023-6-012_CedarFalls 101

Item 13.



102

Item 13.



103

Item 13.



104

Item 13.



105

Item 13.



106

Item 13.



107

Item 13.



108

Item 13.



109

Item 13.



110

Item 13.



111

Item 13.



112

Item 13.



113

Item 13.



114

Item 13.



115

Item 13.



116

Item 13.



117

Item 13.



118

Item 13.



119

Item 13.



120

Item 13.



121

Item 13.



122

Item 13.



123

Item 13.



124

Item 13.



U
B

 
2

R
E

T
N

E
C

N

O
I

T
C

E

S

L
O
T
 
5

L
O
T
 
6

L
O
T
 
7

L
O
T
 
8

NATIONAL RETAIL PROPERTIES LP

(KWIK STAR)

INVESTMENTS

CONVENIENCE STORE

(SUPER 8 MOTEL)

M.W. HART, INC.

OF AMERICA (FLCA)

FARM CREDIT SERVICES

(HILTON GARDEN INN)

CHRISBORO III INC.

CEDAR FALLS

CITY OF

DEERE AND COMPANY

(COMFORT SUITES)

HOTEL GROUP, LLC

CEDAR FALLS

 L
ARJ 

PROPERTIE
S 

LLC 

ALLEN, MARY E 
ALLEN FAMILY TRUST 

ALLEN, DARCI 
ALLEN,DUANE III &

STATE OF IOWA

COX, LEIGH ANNE

HENRY, RONALD R. &

 

 

LOCKARD LAND INC

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

P
A

R
R

E
T

T
, 

M
A

R
G

A
R

E
T
 

A

G
E

B
H

A
R

D
T
, 

L
E

O
N

A
R

D
 

W

CITY OF CEDAR FALLS

Z

NATIO
NAL R

ETAIL
 P

ROPERTIE
S 

LP

COX, 
LEIG

H A
NNE

HENRY, 
RONALD 

R. 
&

COX, LEIGH ANNE

HENRY, RONALD R. &

AC 
INVES

TMENTS 
LLC

LLCINVES
TMENTSAC

LLC DYNAMIC
S

 P
LUMBIN

G

LLC
CONSTRUCTIO

N

DIR
TWORKS

AC 
INVES

TMENTS 
LLC

 MCWIN
G 

LLC 

HUDSONCIT
Y 

OF

STATE OF IOWA

STATE 
OF 

IOWA

STATE 
OF 

IOWA

STATE 
OF 

IOWA

STATE 
OF 

IOWA

9
3
0
.0

3
9
3
0
.9

9

9
3
0
.4

0
9
2
9
.3

4
9
0
+
5
5
.3

1

9
2
+
1
7
.4

0

T
P

S
I
G

N

S
I
G

N

S
I
G

N
S
I
G

N

S
I
G

N

S
I
G

N

S
I
G

N

S
I
G

N

S
I
G

N

20

27 58

ALTERNATIVE 1 - SIGNALIZATION

IA 27 / 58 and Ridgeway Ave.

PCC Replacement on

AUGUST 2019 Proj. # 60594050

Nordic Drive

C
o

m
m

e
r
c
e
 

D
r
iv

e

H
o
te
l 
E
n
tr
a
n
c
e

R
id

g
e

w
a
y
 

A
v
e
n
u
e

R
id

g
e

w
a
y
 

A
v
e
n
u
e

World
Camping

O

FEET

60

Ace Place

But
ter
fiel

d R
oad

ENTRANCE

PROPOSED

S
T

A
. 1

0
9

+
0
5

S
T

A
. 9

0
+
8
0

WALL

RETAINING

PROPOSED

RIGHT-OF-WAY EASEMENT

IOWA DOT RESERVED

DIVISION II

DIVISION II

125

Item 13.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Planning & Community Services Division 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 

 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green 

 FROM: Robyn Cusmano, Housing Program Specialist 

 DATE: October 3, 2022  

 SUBJECT: 2022 Payment Standards for the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program  
 
INTRODUCTION 
The Housing Choice Voucher Program, commonly known as Section 8, is a federally funded program 
administered by the City’s Housing Office that provides rental assistance to lower income individuals 
and families in need of adequate housing.  For families to be successful in finding quality housing, the 
program adopts payment standards that are based on the Fair Market Rents (FMR) for our area, 
which are determined annually by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD).  
The payment standard is the maximum amount of rental assistance the Housing Office can provide. 
HUD requires that payment standards be within 90% to 110% of the published FMR for the Waterloo-
Cedar Falls metro area.  HUD recently released its Fair Market Rents for 2022.  The FMR for the 
Waterloo-Cedar Falls metro area increased for all unit sizes.    
 
ANALYSIS 
The table below compares the current payment standards and FMR with what is proposed for 2022.  
  

HCV PROGRAM - CURRENT VERSUS PROPOSED PAYMENT STANDARDS  

 0 Bed 1 Bed 2 Bed 3 Bed 4 Bed 

Current payment standard $651 $737 $922 $1222 $1554 

2021 FMR $611 $707 $889 $1178 $1499 

Proposed 2022 payment 
standard 

$691 $814 $1027 $1365 $1750 

2022 FMR $629 $740 $934 $1241 $1591 

 
In 2021, the FMR determined by HUD, seemed to be on the low side for rents in Cedar Falls. The 
increase in the 2022 FMR is more aligned with the current housing market in Cedar Falls and will 
allow current and future participants a better chance of finding suitable housing. Historically, the City 
has opted to utilize a 110% standard for one to four bedroom units, given the city’s relatively higher 
cost rental market within the metro area. Staff recommends continuing with that practice.  
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
At their September meeting, the Housing Commission recommended approval of the new payment 
standards at 110% of the FMR for 2022, as noted in the table above.  

126

Item 14.



 
 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8606 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

 MEMORANDUM 
 Administration 

  

   

 

 

 
 
 
 

 TO: Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: September 23, 2022 

 SUBJECT: Setting the Public Hearing for proposed amendments to Section 18-23(5) and 
Section 26-4(c) of the Municipal Code of Ordinances 

 

 
The City Council directed staff to prepare amendments to Section 18-23(5) and Section 26-
4(c) of the Municipal Code of Ordinances.  Both sections pertain to a voting threshold by the 
City Council should the Planning & Zoning Commission recommend denial of said 
amendment. 
 
Background 
Chapter 18 of the Municipal Code of Ordinances is related to Planning.  Article II addresses 
the Planning and Zoning Commission.  Section 18-23 details their powers and duties.  In 
Section 18-23(5) it states that a comprehensive plan amendment must have a 2/3 majority 
vote by Council in the event the Planning & Zoning Commission recommends denial. 
 
Chapter 26 of the Municipal Code of Ordinances is the Zoning Ordinance.  Article I covers 
several general terms, with Section 26-4 addressing amendments to Chapter 26.  In Section 
26-4(c) it states that amendments require a favorable vote of at least 2/3 of the City Council in 
the event the Planning & Zoning Commission recommends denial.  Zoning amendments 
include both text amendments and map amendments of the zoning ordinance.  A text 
amendment is a change to a regulation, such as a change to building height or setback 
requirements. A map amendment is a change to the zoning map and is typically referred to as 
a rezoning.  An example would be a property owner asking to rezone their property from A-1 to 
R-1, to potentially subdivide the property for future homes and public infrastructure. If 
approved, the zoning map is amended to reflect the new zoning designation of R-1.  
 
In the Community Development Committee meeting on September 19, 2022, staff noted a 
history of local discussion on this topic of the Council’s voting threshold in the event the 
Planning & Zoning Commission (P&Z) recommends denial.  It was first discussed by P&Z in 
late 1998.  At that time, P&Z felt the requirements were appropriate and no recommendation 
for change advanced to City Council. It was discussed again in 2002-2003.  The Planning & 
Zoning Commission recommended amending the comprehensive plan super majority to a 3/4 
vote to match the requirement on the zoning chapter of a 3/4 majority vote.  The City Council 
discussed and then passed an ordinance changing both sections to a simple majority vote by 
Council in the event P&Z recommended denial.  The Mayor vetoed these ordinances.  The City 

127

Item 15.



 
 

Council failed to override this veto and then unanimously passed an ordinance amending the 
zoning chapter to a 2/3 majority vote.  This is the ordinance in place today.  Both the zoning 
chapter and the planning chapter of our Municipal Code of Ordinances are consistent requiring 
a 2/3 majority vote in the event the Planning & Zoning Commission recommends denial. 
 
Following is recent research staff conducted on several Iowa communities regarding the voting 
threshold for Council when the Planning & Zoning Commission recommends denial of a zoning 
amendment. 
 

City 

Type of 
Zoning 

Amendment 
(Text or Map) 

Supermajority 
Vote 2/3 3/4 

Ames Any No   

Cedar Falls Any Yes    

Cedar 
Rapids 

Any No   

Des Moines 
Text No   

Map Yes  
 
  

Dubuque Any Yes    

Mason City 
Any No   

Iowa City Any No Joint meeting required 

Waterloo Any Yes    

 
 
Evaluation 
It is suspected that when the zoning ordinance was adopted in 1970, the mandatory voting 
requirement relative to the Planning & Zoning Commission recommendation was established 
to match the State Code requirement.  In 2003, Cedar Falls amended the zoning chapter to 
reduce the majority vote from 3/4 to 2/3.  In reviewing additional materials from that 
amendment, the Mayor’s 2003 veto memo explained that the majority of municipalities 
surveyed used a super majority requirement for zoning issues (attached).     
 
Following are some points of consideration staff identified related to the current proposal to 
amend to a simple majority vote on both comprehensive plan (§18-23(5)) and zoning 
amendments (§26-4(c)). 
 

 City Council’s vote is totally independent of P&Z in every situation (regardless of a 
recommendation for approval or denial).   

 Change aligns with State Code. (At some point in the past, super majority requirements 
were removed.) 

 Change appears to align with some other Iowa communities. 

 P&Z’s role is devalued from its current status. (Often P&Z methodically reviews 
proposals over several meetings that typically include unlimited citizen comment periods 
and a thoughtful discussion among Commissioners and citizens.) 

 Changing at this time may be tied to a specific issue, not a documented trend over time. 

128

Item 15.



 
 

 Comprehensive Plans and Zoning Ordinances are intended to provide stability in the 
market due to the predictability their regulation can provide.  Sometimes changes can 
be contentious and a simple majority Council vote could lend to regulations more easily 
flipping back and forth with changes in Council.  Another scenario could be on-going 
discord on a matter, as a simple majority vote can be vetoed by the Mayor. 

 
A situation that continues to be in our Zoning Ordinance and mandated by State Code applies 
to a protest petition by nearby residents.  Our code states in Section 26-4(c): “.... In case a 
written protest against a proposed amendment, supplement or change is filed with the city 
clerk duly signed by the owners of 20 percent or more of the area of the lots included in such 
proposed change, or by the owners of 20 percent or more of the property which is located 
within 200 feet of the exterior boundaries of the property for which the amendment, 
supplement or change is proposed, such amendment shall not become effective except by 
the favorable vote of at least three-fourths of all the members of the city council....”  
 
At the September 19, 2022, Committee meeting, concern was expressed that P&Z may not be 
engaged in the referral process or fully considering the referrals.  Following is a review of the 
referrals made related to the Downtown Character District in 2022 and P&Z’s consideration of 
them: 

 Eliminate Shared Parking – On January 18, 2022, Council specifically referred 
eliminating shared parking requirements in the CD-DT.  The Planning & Zoning 
Commission discussed the matter at their January 26, 2022 meeting and held a public 
hearing on February 9, 2022, recommending against eliminating it.  On March 7, 2022, 
the City Council vote did not meet the 2/3 super majority to override P&Z’s 
recommendation of denial, therefore it did not advance. 

 Increase private parking requirements for residential uses – On January 18, 2022, 
Council made a general referral to review the residential parking requirement, with 
consensus to have P&Z consider 1 parking space per bedroom and at least one space 
per unit.  P&Z discussed this, recommending a compromise to increase it from .5/BR to 
.75/BR but not less than 1 space per unit.  Council passed this ordinance change in 
April 2022. 

 Missing Middle Housing – Council discussed in March 2022, with no further referral on 
the topic. 

 Accessory Dwelling Units – Council discussed in March 2022, with no further referral on 
the topic. 

 Site Plan Review– On February 7, 2022, Council made a general referral to P&Z to 
further consider the appropriate cases for P&Z/Council site plan review vs. 
administrative (staff level) site plan review.  P&Z discussed this and the initial goals from 
the visioning process at a March meeting, directing staff to prepare an amendment for 
consideration.  On June 6, 2022, after considering five different options, P&Z 
recommended to add P&Z/Council review of new buildings in the UG, UG2 and 
Storefront frontages.  P&Z also asked staff for monthly reports on all other projects to 
monitor the types of cases and consider if any future changes may be needed.  At the 
July 18, 2022 Council meeting, this ordinance failed.  A motion was then made and 
passed to petition P&Z to add review of any site plan expanding the floor plan or where 
residential is being added. After initial discussion on August 10, 2022 and a public 
hearing on August 24th, P&Z recommended against making these additional changes to 
the review process. Council postponed setting a public hearing date for the revised 

129

Item 15.



 
 

ordinance until after considering whether to amend the voting threshold for Council 
when P&Z recommends denial.  

 Shared Parking – On February 21, 2022, Council referred to P&Z a discussion on the 
criteria of shared parking to restrict shared parking to on-site only. On March 7, 2022, 
Council voted to modify this referral by including discussion of the location of allowable 
shared parking.  June 6, 2022, Council added to that referral relative to shared parking 
downtown and to move discussion up on the committee schedule.  The Community 
Relations & Planning Committee discussed it July 18, 2022, with consensus that shared 
parking should be referred to P&Z with consideration including but not limited to the 
location and time of day rules for shared parking.  On August 1, 2022 it was referred 
back to Committee in order to clarify and be more specific about what Council was 
requesting P&Z to consider.  At the subsequent committee meeting on August 15th, a 
motion was passed to request that the Planning and Zoning Commission again consider 
eliminating requirements for shared parking and to increase the parking requirement for 
multi-unit residential to 1 space per bedroom.  The Planning & Zoning Commission is 
holding a public hearing on September 28, 2022, and a recommendation on these 
matters is anticipated at that meeting. 

 Vinyl siding – On March 21, 2022, Council referred to P&Z the following for consideration: 
1) Add an allowance for vinyl siding on any new SF dwelling, 2) Add an allowance for 
vinyl siding on any new residential building with less than 7 units. (duplexes, townhomes, 
small apartment buildings).  Due to the priority of other referrals and workload, these 
items have not been discussed by P&Z yet.  Upon completion of the above items, this will 
be the next topic for P&Z discussion. 

Due to the length of time and complexity of the discussions/referrals, this listing may 
inadvertently omit an item or action.  Descriptions of the discussion, actions or consensus 
utilize minutes from each of these meetings. 
 
 
Moving Forward  
As directed, staff drafted proposed amendments to Section 18-23(5) and Section 26-4(c) of the 
Municipal Code of Ordinances.  They are attached to this memo.  If Council decides to 
proceed with a change, staff asks for consideration of several additional changes to Section 
18-23(5).  The first is to align the public notice period with those found in the zoning chapter, to 
be not less than 7 days and not more than 14 days notice before the hearing.  The second is, 
that upon removal of a Council super-majority, it does not seem necessary to dictate a super-
majority Planning & Zoning Commission vote on a comprehensive plan amendment.  Currently 
this section states a 2/3 majority vote by P&Z is required.  There is no State Code requirement 
on a voting threshold for the Planning & Zoning Commission. 
 
The City Attorney has advised that to change the ordinances in question, a simple majority 
vote is all that is required. 
 
 
 
Attachments:  

 Draft changes to City Code: Section 18-23(5) and Section 26-4(c) 

 2003 Staff Report on amendments 

 June 11, 2003 Mayor veto memo 
 

130

Item 15.



 

Page 1 of 2 

Chapter 18 PLANNING 

ARTICLE II. PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

Sec. 18-23. Powers and duties. 

The city planning and zoning commission shall have and possess the following powers and duties and such 
other powers as may be incidental to the successful carrying out of the powers vested in it in this section or such 
as may be expressly conferred upon it by law:  

(1) The commission shall make or cause to be made such surveys, studies, maps, plans or charts of the 
whole or any portion of the city and of any land outside thereof which, in the opinion of the 
commission, bears relation to a comprehensive plan, and shall submit such plans to the council with its 
studies and recommendations, and it may publish the plans.  

(2) The commission shall prepare a comprehensive plan regarding the height, number of stories and size of 
buildings and structures, the percentage of ground that may be occupied, the size of yards, courts and 
other open spaces, the density of population, and the location and use of buildings, structures and land 
for trade, industry, residence or other purposes, and shall prepare preliminary reports and hold public 
meetings and hearings and submit final reports thereon and recommendations to the council, and 
shall, further, recommend to the council from time to time, as conditions may require, amendments, 
supplements, changes or modifications in any comprehensive plan prepared by the commission.  

(3) All plans, plats or replats of subdivisions or resubdivisions of land in the city or adjacent thereto, laid 
out in lots or plats with the streets, alleys or other portions of the subdivision or resubdivision intended 
to be dedicated to the public in the city, and all proposals for the vacation of a street or partial vacation 
of a street, alley or public ground, shall first be submitted to the commission, and its recommendations 
obtained before approval by the city council.  

(4) No plan for any street, park, parkway, boulevard, trafficway, riverfront or other public improvement 
affecting the city plan shall be finally approved by the city, or the character or location thereof 
determined, unless such proposal shall first have been submitted to the commission and the 
commission shall have had 60 days within which to file its recommendations thereon.  

(5) For the purpose of making a comprehensive plan for the physical development of the city, the 
commission shall make careful and comprehensive studies of the present conditions and future growth 
of the city, with due regard to its relation to neighboring territory. The plan shall be made with the 
general purpose of guiding and accomplishing a coordinated, adjusted and harmonious development 
of the city and its environs which will, in accordance with present and future needs, best promote 
health, safety, order, convenience, prosperity and general welfare, as well as efficiency and economy in 
the process of development. Before adopting a comprehensive plan or any part of it, or any substantial 
amendment thereof, the commission shall hold at least one public hearing thereon, notice of the time 
of which shall be given by one publication in a newspaper of general circulation in the city, not less 
than ten seven and not more than 20 14 days before the hearing. The adopting of the plan or part or 
amendment thereof shall be by resolution of the commission carried by the affirmative vote of not less 
than two-thirdsa majority vote of all of the members of the commission. When such comprehensive 
plan has been adopted as provided for in this subsection, no substantial amendment or modification 
thereof shall be made without such proposed change being first referred to the commission for its 
recommendation. Amendments or modifications to the comprehensive plan shall not become effective 
except by the favorable vote of a majority of all the members of the city council. may be approved by a 
majority vote of all of the members of the council.Passage of an ordinance, amendment, or resolution 
requires a majority vote of all of the members of the council.If the commission disapproves the 
proposed change, it may be adopted by the city council by an affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of 
all the members of such council.  

Formatted: Not Highlight

131

Item 15.



 

 

 

Page 2 of 2 

(6) The commission may employ such technical assistance as it deems necessary, subject to budgetary 
limitations. Such assistance may be in the form of secretarial, consultant or legal service. The 
commission should, as a matter of policy, invite such assistants, the zoning administrator and the city 
engineer, or their representatives, to regularly attend meetings of the commission and to offer 
information or make suggestions regarding items under consideration.  

(7) The city council may annually appropriate a sum of money from the general funds for the payment of 
the expense of the commission. The commission shall have full, complete and exclusive authority to 
expend for and on behalf of the city all sums of money so appropriated.  

(8) The commission, each year, shall make a report to the mayor and city council of its proceedings, with a 
full statement of its receipts and disbursements and the progress of its work for the preceding fiscal 
year.  

(9) The commission shall adopt such rules and regulations governing its organization and procedure as 
may be deemed necessary.  

(10) The commission shall have all other powers and duties providing for planning and zoning commissions 
in Iowa Code ch. 414.  

(Code 2017, § 21-30) 

 

132

Item 15.



 

Page 1 of 2 

Chapter 26 - ZONING 

ARTICLE I. - IN GENERAL 

Sec. 26-4. Amendments to chapter. 

(a) The city council may, from time to time, on its own action or on petition, after public notice and hearings as 
provided by law, and after reports by the city planning and zoning commission, amend, supplement or 
change the boundaries or regulations established in this chapter or subsequently established. Such 
amendment shall not become effective except by the favorable vote of a majority of all the members of the 
city council.  

(b) Prior to and in addition to the requirements of subsection (a) of this section, whenever any person desires 
that any amendment or change be made in this chapter as to any property in the city, there shall be 
presented to the city planning and zoning commission a petition requesting such change or amendment 
signed by the owners of at least 50 percent of the area of all the real estate included within the boundaries 
of the tract as described in the petition. The petition shall contain a legal description of the real estate for 
which rezoning is requested, the existing zoning classification and the requested zoning classification. The 
petition shall also have attached to it a plat which identifies the real estate for which rezoning is requested 
and which also shows all public streets and highways within a distance of 300 feet; the platted addition, if 
any, or the government section number and quarters in which the real estate is located; the existing zoning 
classification; and the requested zoning classification. Such plats shall be of a scale of not less than 300 feet 
to one inch. Within 30 days after the filing of such petition, the city planning and zoning commission, acting 
as a commission or acting through its chairperson, vice-chairperson or other authorized agent, shall fix a 
time, date and place of hearing on the petition, which date shall be no more than 60 days after the filing of 
such petition. The petitioner for such change or amendment shall thereafter cause a notice of hearing to be 
published once in a newspaper of general circulation published within the city, at least seven but not more 
than 14 days before the date fixed for such hearing. Such notice shall contain the time, date and place of the 
hearing, the existing zoning classification, the requested zoning classification and a reproduction of the plat 
attached to the petition, and shall be signed by the petitioners. The city planning and zoning commission 
may, upon the unanimous approval of the members present at a meeting, act upon a petition for rezoning or 
initiate a zoning change or amendment without the necessity of such a plat, notice or hearing.  

(c) In case the proposed amendment, supplement or change is disapproved by the city planning and zoning 
commission, such amendment, supplement or change shall not become effective except by the favorable 
vote of at least two-thirds of all the members of the city council. In case a written protest against a proposed 
amendment, supplement or change is filed with the city clerk duly signed by the owners of 20 percent or 
more of the area of the lots included in such proposed change, or by the owners of 20 percent or more of the 
property which is located within 200 feet of the exterior boundaries of the property for which the 
amendment, supplement or change is proposed, such amendment shall not become effective except by the 
favorable vote of at least three-fourths of all the members of the city council. Whenever any petition for an 
amendment, supplement or change of the zoning or regulations contained in this chapter or subsequently 
established shall have been denied by the city council, then no new petition covering the same property or 
the same property and additional property shall be filed with or considered by the city council until six 
months shall have elapsed from the date of the filing of the first petition.  

(d) Unless any lot, tract or parcel of land hereafter zoned to a less restrictive classification than as provided in 
this chapter has been used or developed for such less restrictive classification within two years from such 
rezoning, or unless there exists an unexpired building permit for the development thereof at the end of such 
two years, the city planning and zoning commission may, prior to the bona fide commencement of the use or 
development of the land in its less restrictive classification, after seven days' notice, in writing, to the then 
record owner of the land providing a reasonable opportunity to be heard, initiate and recommend to the city 
council that the land be rezoned to its zoning classification as established at the date of the passage of the 
ordinance from which this chapter is derived.  

133

Item 15.

https://library.municode.com/ia/cedar_falls/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COOR_CH26ZO


 

Page 2 of 2 

(e) Before any action has been taken as provided in this section, the party proposing or recommending a change 
in district regulations or district boundaries shall deposit with the city clerk such sum as established by the 
council from time to time to cover the costs of this procedure. The fee will be nonrefundable.  

(Ord. No. 2922, § 1(29-4), 5-7-2018) 

 

134

Item 15.



135

Item 15.



136

Item 15.



137

Item 15.



138

Item 15.



139

Item 15.



140

Item 15.



141

Item 15.



142

Item 15.



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-268-5161 
Fax: 319-268-5197 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 
MEMORANDUM 

Engineering Division 

  

  

 

 

 
  
 
 TO: Honorable Mayor Robert M. Green and City Council 
 
 FROM: Luke Andreasen, PE 
 
 DATE: September 23, 2022 
 
 SUBJECT: 27th Street Sanitary Sewer Extension District Ordinance 
  Division 6 added to City Code Chapter 24, Article II 
 
 
With construction now completed for the 27th Street Sanitary Sewer extension, it is now 
necessary to update City Code in order to establish a new sanitary sewer district and 
tapping fee for this extension. The service area for this proposed district is shown in 
Exhibit 1. 
 
The Engineering Division of the Public Works Department is proposing that a Division 6: 
27th Street Sanitary Sewer Extension, be added to Chapter 24, Article II of the Code of 
Ordinances. Please see attached for this proposed addition. 
 
If you have any questions or concerns, please feel free to ask. 
 
 
xc:  Chase Schrage, Director of Public Works 
 David Wicke, PE, City Engineer  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
     

 
 
 

143

Item 16.



1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by: Kevin Rogers, City Attorney, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls, IA  50613, (319)273-8600 

 

ORDINANCE NO. ________ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ARTICLE II, SEWERS AND SEWAGE DISPOSAL, OF 

CHAPTER 24, UTILITIES, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, IOWA, BY ADDING A NEW DIVISION 6, 27th STREET SANITARY 

SEWER EXTENSION DISTRICT, WHICH ESTABLISHES A NEW SEWER DISTRICT 

IN THE CITY AND PROVIDES FOR FEES FOR SEWER CONNECTION. 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA: 

       Section 1.  Article II, Sewers and Sewage Disposal, of Chapter 24, Utilities, of the Code 

of Ordinances of the City of Cedar Falls, Iowa, is hereby amended by enacting a new 

Division 6, 27th Street Sanitary Sewer Extension District, containing New Section 24-223, 

Establishment of District; New Section 24-224, Description of Benefited Properties; New 

Section 24-225, Imposition of Sewer Connection Charge; Application, and New Section 24-

226, Timing of Payment of Sewer Connection Charge, as follows: 

DIVISION 6. - 27th STREET SANITARY SEWER EXTENSION 

Sec. 24-223. Establishment of district. 

         There is hereby established the 27th Street Sanitary Sewer Extension District, which 

may be referred to in this division as the district.  The district consists of all property served 

and benefited by the 27th Street Sanitary Sewer Extension, which is legally described in 

section 24-224. 

Sec. 24-224.  Description of benefited properties. 

         The property served and benefited by the district consists of approximately 145.0 

acres of property legally described as follows: 

PART OF THE SOUTH HALF OF SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5TH 

PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA, AND PART OF 

144

Item 16.



2 
 

THE NORTH HALF OF SECTION 22, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5TH PRINCIPAL 

MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

(1) THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE SOUTHWEST 

QUARTER (1/4) OF SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5TH 

PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA. 

(2) THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE 

SOUTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) LYING SOUTHWESTERLY OF THE LINE FROM THE NORTHWEST 

CORNER TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER THEREOF, IN SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, 

RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK 

HAWK COUNTY, IOWA. 

(3) THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) OF SECTION 15, 

TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA. 

(4) THE WEST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF 

SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN 

THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA. 

(5) THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE 

SOUTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) LYING SOUTHWESTERLY OF THE LINE FROM THE NORTHWEST 

CORNER TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER THEREOF, IN SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, 

RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK 

HAWK COUNTY, IOWA. 

(6) THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE SOUTHEAST 

QUARTER (1/4) OF SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5TH 

PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA. 

(7) THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE SOUTHEAST 

QUARTER (1/4) OF SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5TH 

PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA. 

(8) THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF SECTION 22, 

TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF 

CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA, EXCEPT THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) OF 

THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) THEREOF. 

(9) THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) OF 

THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) LYING NORTHEASTERLY OF THE LINE FROM THE 

NORTHWEST CORNER TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER THEREOF, IN SECTION 22, TOWNSHIP 89 

NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, 

BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA. 

(10) THE NORTH 190 FEET OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER 

(1/4) OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF SECTION 22, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 

145

Item 16.



3 
 

WEST OF THE 5TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, 

IOWA. 

(11) THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE 

NORTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) LYING NORTHEASTERLY OF THE LINE FROM THE NORTHWEST 

CORNER TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER THEREOF, IN SECTION 22, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, 

RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK 

HAWK COUNTY, IOWA. 

 

Sec. 24-225.  Imposition of sewer connection charge; application. 

There is hereby imposed on each property located within the district a connection 

charge for connecting to the 27th Street Sanitary Sewer Extension as follows: 

The owner of any property that lies within the district who wishes to connect to the 

27th Street Sanitary Sewer Extension shall first make application to the city for connection.  

No connection shall be made until such application has been approved by the city engineer 

and until the required connection fee has been paid.  This connection charge shall be in 

addition to all other fees and charges imposed by the city. 

(a)  The sewer connection charge established in this division shall be in proportion 

to the area of the benefitted property at a rate of $2,697.65 per acre, payable in 

cash. 

                              (b)  The owner shall be solely responsible for the cost of connection, including but 

not limited to the cost of connecting structures. 

 (c)  No connection shall be made by any person except direct connection to serve 

property within the district. 

(d) In the event that any property within the district is subdivided and additional 

structures are permitted thereon, the owner of each such property shall be 

required to separately comply with the requirements of this section prior to 

connection. 

  (e) If connection is made within the district to the 27th Street Sanitary Sewer 

Extension without application having been made therefore or without approval 

having been received, or without the required connection charge having been 

paid, then the city shall be entitled to disconnect at the property owner’s cost 

until such time as application, approval and payment as required in this division 

is completed.   

 

 

146

Item 16.



4 
 

Sec. 24-226.  Timing of payment of sewer connection charge. 

Each owner or developer of property which lies within the district and who wishes to 

file a minor plat or final plat shall apply for connection and upon approval pay a sewer 

connection charge to the city prior to or at the time of minor plat or final plat approval by the 

city.  This subsection shall be applicable to all minor plat and final plat applications related 

to any property located within the district filed after the effective date of this ordinance.    

Sec. 24-227—24-253.  Reserved 

 

INTRODUCED:     October 3, 2022   

PASSED 1st CONSIDERATION:      

PASSED 2nd CONSIDERATION:      

PASSED 3rd CONSIDERATION:      

ADOPTED:         

 

 

___________________________ 

                                                                           Robert M. Green, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Jacqueline Danielsen, MMC, City Clerk 

147

Item 16.



DATE

DR
N

DE
S

CH
K

AP
P

N
O

RE
VI

SI
O

N
S

DR
N

CH
K

DA
TE

PROJECT NO.

SHEET NO.

DRAWING NO.

MILESTONE

DESCRIPTION OF THE SERVICE AREA FOR THE W. 27TH STREET

SANITARY SEWER EXTENSION

148

Item 16.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
K

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. 27TH STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNION ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL: 145.0 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
c

AutoCAD SHX Text
Copyright

AutoCAD SHX Text
AECOM  All Rights Reserved

AutoCAD SHX Text
\\na.aecomnet.com\LFS\AMER\Waterloo-USWAT1\Legacy\Projects\60637669\900-CAD-GIS\210-Sanitary\SERVICE AREA PLAT (UPDATE 20220801).dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
8/1/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRINTED:

AutoCAD SHX Text
Mueller, Aaron

AutoCAD SHX Text
of

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
W. 27TH STREET SANITARY SEWER EXTENSION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SERVICE AREA EXHIBIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.01

AutoCAD SHX Text
8/1/2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
60637669

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART OF THE SOUTH HALF OF SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5  PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA, AND PART OF THE NORTH HALF OF SECTION 22, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5  PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: A. THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) OF SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5  PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA. B. THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) LYING SOUTHWESTERLY OF THE LINE FROM THE NORTHWEST CORNER TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER THEREOF, IN SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5  PRINCIPAL TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA. C. THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) OF SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5  PRINCIPAL TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA. D. THE WEST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE SOUTHEAST THE WEST HALF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5  PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA. E. THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) LYING SOUTHWESTERLY OF THE LINE FROM THE NORTHWEST CORNER TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER THEREOF, IN SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5  PRINCIPAL TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA. F. THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5  PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA. G. THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5  PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA. H. THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF SECTION 22, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5  PRINCIPAL TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA, EXCEPT THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) THEREOF. I. THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE NORTHWEST THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) LYING NORTHEASTERLY OF THE LINE FROM THE NORTHWEST CORNER TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER THEREOF, IN SECTION 22, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5  THPRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA. J. THE NORTH 190 FEET OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE THE NORTH 190 FEET OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF SECTION 22, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5  PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA. K. THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (1/4) OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (1/4) LYING NORTHEASTERLY OF THE LINE FROM THE NORTHWEST CORNER TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER THEREOF, IN SECTION 22, TOWNSHIP 89 NORTH, RANGE 14 WEST OF THE 5  PRINCIPAL TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN IN THE CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, BLACK HAWK COUNTY, IOWA. THIS SERVICE AREA CONTAINS APPROXIMATELY 145.0 ACRES.

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
250'

AutoCAD SHX Text
500'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N



149

Item 17.



150

Item 17.



151

Item 17.



152

Item 17.



153

Item 17.



154

Item 17.



155

Item 17.



156

Item 17.



157

Item 17.



158

Item 17.



159

Item 17.



160

Item 17.



161

Item 17.



162

Item 17.



163

Item 17.



164

Item 17.



165

Item 17.



166

Item 17.



167

Item 17.



168

Item 17.



169

Item 17.



170

Item 17.



171

Item 17.



172

Item 17.



173

Item 17.



174

Item 17.



175

Item 17.



176

Item 17.



177

Item 17.



178

Item 17.



179

Item 17.



180

Item 17.



181

Item 17.



182

Item 17.



183

Item 17.



184

Item 17.



185

Item 17.



186

Item 17.



187

Item 17.



188

Item 17.



189

Item 17.



190

Item 17.



191

Item 17.



192

Item 17.



193

Item 17.



194

Item 17.


	Top
	Item 1.	Regular meeting of September 19, 2022
	220919MINUTES

	Item 2.	Proclamation-Leader in Me
	2022-10-W2_LeaderInMeWeek

	Item 3.	Proclamation-Fire Prevention Week
	2022-10-W2_FirePreventionWeek

	Item 4.	Ord. 3016-City Council Procedures
	1-CouncilCodeChangeRequestMemo Revised 8-31-22
	2-Ordinance Council Rules of Procedure Redline-Revised 9-6-22
	3-3016-Council Rules of Procedure FINAL-Revised 9-6-22

	Item 5.	Ord. 3017-Utility Parkway Parking
	1. Memo - Parking Prohibited on Utility Parkway Ordinance
	2. Utility Parkway
	3. Utility Parkway - request for No Parking Ordinance 2022
	4. Redlined Sec._23_374_rev
	5. Ord. 3017-Parking on Utility Parkway_rev 08.03.22 (2)

	Item 6.	Committee Minutes - 9/19/22
	09-19-22 Administrative Committee Minutes-Final

	Item 7.	Departmental Monthly Report
	08 - August 2022 Departmental Monthly Report

	Item 8.	Assistant Director of Public Safety/Police Chief - Civil Service certified list
	AsstDirPS-PoliceChief CertList9-2022

	Item 9.	Fireworks Permit
	Fireworks Permit

	Item 10.	Liquor Beer 10-3-22
	Liquor Beer 10-3-22

	Item 11.	GTSB-Public Safety
	2748_001

	Item 12.	Fiber Optic License Agreement
	1.  Fiber Optic License Agreement Memo - 18th St_Waterloo Rd_University Ave
	2. Aureon License Agreement - Signed
	3. Exhibit A - Route Discription Aureon 18-Waterloo-Uni

	Item 13.	IA 58 & Ridgeway Avenue - Preconstruction Agreement
	1. IDOT preconstruction agreement
	2. Preconstruction Agreement
	3. Exhibit B - Mills Development Agreement
	4. Strip Map

	Item 14.	Payment Standards-Housing Choice Voucher
	Memo to Council  - Payment Standards for 2022

	Item 15.	Set PH-Zoning-Remove 2/3 Voting Threshold
	1. Set PH on voting threshold V3
	2. Chapter_18___PLANNING
	3. Sec._26_4.___Amendments_to_chapter_
	4. Dec 2002 staff report
	5. Crews veto memo

	Item 16.	Ord-Chapter 24-27th Street Sanitary Sewer Extension
	1. Council Memo - 27th Sanitary District Ordinance
	2.Ord-27th Street Sanitary Sewer District
	3. SERVICE AREA PLAT (UPDATE 20220801)

	Item 17.	Bills and Claims
	1 Daily Invoices 100322
	2 Council Invoices 100322

	Bottom

